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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of WIN Semiconductors Corp.
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, under the "Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” are
the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 by the Financial Supervisory Commission, "Consolidated Financial
Statements." In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is
included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, WIN Semiconductors Corp. and its
Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Company name: WIN Semiconductors Corp.
Chairman: CHEN, CHIN-TSAI
Date: March 23, 2017
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of WIN Semiconductors Corp. :
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WIN Semiconductors Corp. and its subsidiaries (“the
Group™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015 and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of WIN Semiconductors Corp. and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2016 and
2015, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“IASs™),
interpretations as well as related guidance endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic
of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of WIN
Semiconductors Corp. and its subsidiaries in accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of
Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In our judgment, the key audit matters we
communicated in the auditors’ report were as follows:

1. Revenue recognition

For accounting policies of revenue recognition, please refer to Note 4 (q) "Revenue" of the consolidated
financial statements.

WIN Semiconductors Corp. and its subsidiaries engage in selling of GaAs wafers. Currently, the GaAs
semiconductor industry is becoming more competitive. Also, WIN Semiconductors Corp. is a listed company
involving in public interest. Therefore, its revenue recognition has been identified as a key audit matter while
conducting our audit on the financial statements of WIN Semiconductors Corp. and its subsidiaries.

KPMG, a Taiwan partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative ('KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: Testing the design and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
on revenue and order-to-cash transaction cycle. Inspecting the contracts signed with major customers to
assess the reasonableness of the timing to recognize revenue. Performing the trend analysis of revenue, and
collaborating it’s movement and expectation to verify whether or not any unusual matter has incurred.

. Evaluation of inventory

Please refer to Note 4(h) “Inventory” for accounting policies, Note 5(a) for accounting assumptions,
judgments and estimation uncertainty of inventory, and Note 6(d) for the illustration of inventory of the
consolidated financial statements.

Due to the industry demand, WIN Semiconductors Corp. and its subsidiaries store a high ratio of precious
metals which result in a lower inventory turnover. Therefore, the Group cannot require sufficient information
on inventories that were sold or used on the reporting date. Since the technology changes rapidly, the
inventory may be out of date or may not conform to market demand, resulting in a risk wherein the carrying
amount of inventories may exceed its net realisable value.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: Testing the accuracy of the estimations of inventory at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Referring to the recent selling price and considering the amount of written-off
inventory in the subsequent events to evaluate the appropriateness of the amount of loss on valuation of
inventory or obsolescence. Analysing the historical accuracy of judgments, including inspecting the amount
of loss on valuation of inventory or obsolescence recognized in prior year and with reference to actual
disposal to assess rationality of the judgments of the current period. Moreover, comparing with the provision
for inventory valuation and obsolescence made in the current year to evaluate the appropriateness of the
assumptions.

. Business combination

Please refer to Note 4(u) “Business combination” for accounting policies, Note 5(b) for accounting
assumptions, judgments and estimation uncertainty of business combination, and Note 6(g) for the
illustration of business combination of the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has controlled over Chainwin Agriculture and Animal Technology (Cayman Islands) Ltd. and its
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2016. For the requirement of the accounting policies regarding
business combination, the management of WIN Semiconductors Corp. and its subsidiaries made judgments
in determining the fair value of the consideration transferred, assets acquired and non-controlling interest.
There is a significant judgment involved in determining the fair value of pre-existing interest of the acquiree,
assets acquired and liabilities assumed given the specialised nature of the acquired businesses and their
related technologies. Thus, the business combination has been identified as a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: Using our own valuation specialists to assist us in challenging the
valuation assumptions and methodologies, which included the understanding of the asset valuation models
used and their key inputs. Enquiring from the management its performance of operation to verify whether or
not it is consistent with the input assumptions on external market information in order to identify the
reasonableness of assumptions underlying the identification of the fair value of the separate identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the independent external valuation report.
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Other Matter

WIN Semiconductors Corp. has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with
the IFRSs, IASs, IFRIC as well as SIC endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China, and for such internal control as management determines is nccessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditors® report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design andit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

3. Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors® report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our-auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Ya-Ling Chen and
Mei-Yen Chen.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (The Republic of China)
March 23, 2017

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position,
financial performance and its cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are
those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China,

The auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version prepared
and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English and Chinese
language auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dellars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Operating revenue

Operating costs {notes 6(d),6(e),6(f).6(k),6(0),6(p),6(x),7 2nd 12)
Gross profit from operating

Operating expenses (notes 6(c),6(k),6(0),6(p),6(u),7 and 12);

2016

2015

Amount Y

Amount %

$

13,623,076 100
(8.633.824) _(63)

12,015,747 100
(7.254,716) _(60)

4989252 _ 37

4,761,031 40

Selling expenses (169,804) (1)  (131,408) (1)
Administrative expenses (735461) (5) (546,774  (5)
Research and development expenses (606.344) _ (5) (572,485 _ (5)
Total operating expenses (1,511.609) _(11) _(1.250,667) _(11)
Net other income (expenses) (note 6(e)) 16,959 - - -
Net operating income 3,494,602 26 _ 3,510,364 _ 29
Non-operating income and expenses:
Other income (notes 6(0) and 6(v)) 137,384 1 102,438 1
Other gains and losses (notes 6(£),6(g) and 6(v)) 318,332 2 Gon7Tn -
Finance costs (notes 6(v}) (20,220) - (13,852) -
Share of Toss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method
{notes 6(£)) (42.554) _ - (106,195 __ {1}
Total non-operating income and expenses 392942 _ 3 (76.,726) _ - _
Profit before tax 3,887,544 29 3,433,638 29
Total tax expense (note 6(q)) (791,239) _ (6) __ (762,011 _ (T}
Profit 3006305 23 _ 2671627 _ 22
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (note 6{p}) (13,272) - {6,304 -
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss (note 6{q)} 2,256 _ - 1.092 _ -
Total components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss {11,016y _ - (5232 _ -
Components of other comprehensive ircome (loss) that will be reclassified to profit
or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements (45,648) (D) 15177 -
Unrealised gains (losses} on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets 397,017 3 147,199 1
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using equity method (note 6(f)) 301 - 303) -
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss - - - -
Total components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss 351670 __ 2 162073 _ 1
Other comprehensive income 340654 2 156,841 _ 1
Total comprehensive income $_ 3436959 25 _ 2.828.468 _ 23
Profit (loss), attributable to; - -
Profit attributable to owners of parent $ 3112774 23 2,671,627 22
Loss attributable to non-controiling interests (16.469) _ - - —_
§_ 3006305 _ 23 _ 2671627 _ 22
Comprehensive income attributable to: - -
Comprehensive income, attributable to owners of parent $ 3,480,374 26 2,828.468 23
Comprehensive income (loss) , atiributable to nen-controlling interests 4345 _ () - -
$ 3436950 25 _ 2838468 _ 23
Earnings per conmon share {expressed in dollars)(note 6(t)) - -
Basic earnings per share § 6.04 3.97
Diluted earnings per share 8 5.99 3.94

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2016 2015
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax $ 3.887.544 3.433.638
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 2,338,116 1,899,310
Amortization expense 33,943 23,781
Net [oss (gain) on financial assets or liabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss (28,838) 16,108
Interest expense 20,220 13,852
Interest income (11,104) {20,280)
Dividend income (55,532) (37,901)
Share of logs of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method 49,835 109,979
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plan and equipment 2,786 (1,824)
Loss (gain) on disposal of investments (227,111) 47,087
Impairment loss on financial assets - 65,050
Changes in biological assets at fair value (16.959) -
Total adjustments to reconcile profit 2.105.356 2.115.162
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Decrease {increase) in current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (29,222) 10,073
Increase in notes and accounts receivable, net (347,001) (9,977)
Increase in inventories (279,342) (1,023,336)
Decrease in biological assets 22327 -
Decrease {increase) in other current assets 138 (108.938)
‘Fotal changes in operating assets (633.100) (1,132 178)
Changes in operating liabilittes:
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable (386,703) 380,094
Increase in other payable 95,757 87,511
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities (398,223) 520,920
Increase in other operating liabilities 1.645 1,248
Total changes in operating liabilities {687.524) 989,773
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (1.320.624) (142 .405)
Cash inflow generated from operations 4,672,274 5,406,395
Dividends received 2,785 1,030
Ticome taxes paid (888.561) {514.766)
Net cash flows from operating activities 3.786.500 4.892.659
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (2,796,160) (5,127,443)
Proceeds from disposal of current financial assets at fair valuz through profit or loss 3,669,438 5,447,999
Acquisition of current available-for-sale financial assets (21,732) -
Acquisition of non-current available-for-sale financial assets (376,870) (55,620)
Proceeds from non-current available-for-sale financial assets 284,140 29,711
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method {486,720) (448,130)
Proceeds from capital reduction of investments accounted for using equity method 109,426 -
Praceeds from disposal of non-current investments in debt instrument without active market 67,000 -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2,036,046) (1,522,760)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 891 7,560
Decrease in other receivables due from related parties 4,938 -
Acquisition of intangible assets (46,267) (32,403)
Net cash inflows from business combination 963,765 -
Increase in other non-current asscts (44,786) (3,600)
Increase in prepayments for business facilities (1,189,832) (1.970,361)
Interest received 12,205 19,564
Dividends received 52,747 36,87
Net cash flows used in investing activities (1.833.863) (3.618.612)
Cash flows from (nsed in) financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in shori-term loans (23,656) 23,656
Proceeds from long-term debt 2,514,000 -
Repayments of long-term debt . (841.506) (545,444)
Increase in other non-current liabilities 6,127 3,303
Cash dividends paid (298,333) (148,679)
Capital reduction payments to shareholders (1,789,999) {1,486,790)
Exetcise of employee share options 2,902 74,535
Payments to acquire treasury shares (965,293) -
Interest paid (18.189) (12.130)
Net cash flows nsed in financing activities (1.413.947) (2.091.549)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {20,204) 9.960
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 518,486 (807,542)
Cash and cash eqnivalents at beginning of period 1.869.657 2.677.199
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period g 2,388,143 1,869,657

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history:

Win Semiconductors Corp. (the “Company™) was incorporated on October 16, 1999 as a company limited
by shares and registered under the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. The address of the Company’s
registered office is No. 69, Keji 7th Rd., Hwaya Technology Park, Guishan Dist., Taoyuan City, Taiwan.

The main operation the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) are as follows:
(a) Resecarching, developing, manufacturing, and seiling of GaAs wafers.
(b) Developing hog farming technology and frading.

(2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:

These consolidated financial statements was authorized for issued by the Board of Directors of March 23,
2017,

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a) Impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. ("FSC") but not yet adopted by the Group.

According to Ruling No. 1050026834 issued on July 18, 2016, by the FSC, public entities are
required to conform to the IFRSs which were issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) before January 1, 2016, and were endorsed by the FSC on January 1, 2017 in
preparing their financial statements. The related new standards, interpretations and amendments are
as follows:

. Effective date per
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations TASB
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 "Investment Entities: Applying January 1, 2016
the Consolidation Exception"

Amendment to IFRS 11 "Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint January 1, 2016
Operations”

IFRS 14 "Regulatory Deferral Accounts" January 1, 2016
Amendment to IAS 1 "Disclosure Initiative" January 1, 2016

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 "Clarification of Acceptable Methods of January 1, 2016
Depreciation and Amortization"

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 "Agriculture: Bearer Plants" January 1, 2016
Amendment to IAS 19 "Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions" July 1,2014

(Continued)
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WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Effective date per
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations JASB
Amendment to IAS 27 "Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements" January 1, 2016

Amendment to IAS 36 "Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial January 1, 2014
Assets”

Amendment to JAS 39 "Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge January 1, 2014
Accounting”

Annual improvements cycles 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 July 1, 2014
Annual improvements cycle 2012-2014 January 1, 2016
IFRIC 21 "Levies" : January 1, 2014

Except for the following items, the Group believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would not
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to TAS 36 "Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non Financial Assets:

Under the amendments, the recoverable amount is required to be disclosed only when an impairment
loss has been recognized or reversed. In such cases, the amendments also require that the following
be disclosed if the recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal:

(i) the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized;
and

(ii) the valuation technique(s) used for fair value measurements categorized within Levels 2 and 3
of the fair value hierarchy, and the key valuation assumptions made.

The Group expects the aforementioned amendments will result in a broader disclosure of the
recoverable amount for non-financial assets.

Newly released or amended standards and interpretations not yet endorsed by the FSC

A summary of the new standards and amendments issued by the IASB but not yet endorsed by the
FSC. The FSC announced that the Group should apply IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 starting January 1, 2018.
As of the date the Group’s financial statements were issued, the FSC has yet to announce the
effective dates of the other IFRSs. As of the end of reporting date is as follows:

Effective date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB
IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" January 1, 2018
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 "Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an  Effective date to
Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture" _ be determined by
IASB
IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" January 1, 2018

(Continued)
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WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Effective date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per TIASB

IFRS 16 "Leases" January 1, 2019
Amendment to IFRS 2 "Clarifications of Classification and Measurement of January 1, 2018
Share-based Payment Transactions"
Amendment to IFRS 15 "Clarifications of IFRS 15" January 1, 2018
Amendment to IAS 7 "Disclosure Initiative" January 1, 2017
Amendment to IAS 12 "Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Januvary 1, 2017

Losses"

Amendment to IFRS 4 " Insurance Contracts"(“Applying IFRS 9 Financial January 1,2018

Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts™)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 20142016 Cycle:

IFRS 12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities"
IFRS 1 "First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting

January 1, 2017
January 1, 2018

Standards" and IAS 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures"

IFRIC 22 "Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration"

Amendment to JIAS 40 Investment Property

January 1, 2018
Janvary 1, 2018

The Group is still currently determining the potential impact of the standards listed below:

Issuance / Release
Dates Standards or Interpretations Content of amendment
May 28, 2014 IFRS 15 "Revenue from IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model for

April 12, 2016

Contracts with Customers"

recognizing revenue that applies to all
contracts with customers, and will supersede
TAS 18 "Revenue,"” TAS 11 "Construction
Contracts,” and a number of revenue-related
interpretations.

Final amendments issued on April 12, 2016,
clarify how to (i) identify performance
obligations in a contract; (i) determine
whether a company is a principal or an agent;
(iii) account for a license for intellectual
property (IP); and (iv) apply transition
requirements.

(Continued)
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WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Issuance / Release
Dates Standards or Interpretafions Content of amendment
November 19,2013 IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” The standard will replace IAS 39 "Financial
July 24,2014 Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,
and the main amendments are as follows:

» Classification and measurement: Financial
assets are measured at amortized cost, fair
value through profit or loss, or fair value
through other comprehensive income,
based on both the entity's business model
for managing the financial assets and the
financial assets' contractual cash flow
characteristics. Financial liabilities are
measured at amortized cost or fair value
through profit or loss. Furthermore, there is
a requirement that "own credit risk"
adjustments be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

»

Impairment: The expected credit loss
model is used to evaluate impairment.

Hedge accounting: Hedge accounting is
more closely aligned with risk management
activities, and hedge -effectiveness is
measured based on the hedge ratio.

January 13, 2016 IFRS 16 "Leases" The new standard of accounting for lease is
amended as follows:

» For a contract that is, or contains, a lease,
the lessee shall recognize a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability in the balance
sheet. In the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, a lessee shall
present interest expense on the lease
liability separately from the depreciation
charge for the right-of use asset during the
lease term.

+ A lessor classifies a lease as either a
finance lease or an operating lease, and
therefore, the accounting remains similar
toJAS 17.

(Continued)
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Issuance / Release

Dates Standards or Interpretations Content of amendment
December 8,2016  Amendment to IAS 40 The amendments specify that a transfer into,
Investment Property or out of, investment property would be made

only when there has been a change in use of a
property, supported by evidence that a change
in use has occurred. The amendments also
clarify that the list of circumstances that
provide evidence of a change in use set out in
paragraph 57 (a)-(d) of IAS 40 contains
examples and is not an exhaustive list.

The Group is evaluating the impact on its financial position and financial performance of the initial
adoption of the abovementioned standards or interpretations. The results thereof will be disclosed
when the Group completes its evaluation.

(4) Summary of significant accounting policies:

The consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version prepared and used
in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.

The significant accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are summarized as
follows:

(@

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated annual financial statements have prepared in accordance with the “Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” (hereinafter referred to as the
Regulations). and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations and SIC Interpretations endorsed by the FSC (hereinafter referred
to as the IFRS endorsed by the FSC).

Basis of preparation
(i) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the following material items in the consolidated balance sheets :

1) Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value (including derivative financial instruments) ;

2)  Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value;

(Continued)



(ii)

14

WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3) The net defined benefit liabilities are recognized as the present value of the defined
benefit obligation, and the effect of the plan assets ceiling disclosure in note 4(r) less
plan assets.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Group entities is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entities operate. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in New Taiwan Dollar, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in New Taiwan Dollar has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(c) Basis of consolidation

@

(ii)

Principle of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. When the
Company is exposed to the variable remuneration from investing on other individual or sharing
the rights of the remuneration, also, is able to influence the rewards, the Company controls the
individual.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Transactions, balances
and any other unrealized profit and loss between the Company and other subsidiaries are all
eliminated while preparing the consolidated financial reports. Comprehensive income (loss) of
subsidiaries belongs to the owner of the Company and the non-controlling interest respectively.
Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-
controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit
balance.

Financial reports of subsidiaries had been adjusted properly and the accounting policies used
in subsidiaries are same to the Group’s.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions. Differences between the amount paid or received
from fair value and the adjustment of the non-controlling interest are directly realized to the
equity and belong to the owners of the Company.

List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements

Shareholding

Name of December 31, December 31,
investor Name of subsidiary Principal activity 2016 2015

The Company WIN SEML USA, INC. Marketing 100.00 %% 100.00 %
The Company Win Semiconductors Cayman Islands Co., Lid, (abbrev. Win Cayman) Selling of GaAs wafers 100,00 % 100.00 %
The Company WIN Venture Capital Corp. Investment activities 100.00 % 100.00 %
Win Cayman Chairrwin Agriculture and Animal Technology (Cayman Islands) Lid. (abbrev.  Investment activities 4375 % -

Chainwin Cayman} {®ote 1)

Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu Chainwin Kang Yuan Agriculture Development Co., Lid, (Note 2) Developing hog farming 100.00 % -

technology and trading

Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu CM / Merit Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. Developing hog farming 60,00 % -

technology and trading

Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu Merit / CM Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. . Developing hog farming 60.00 % -

technology and trading

(Continued)
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Shareholding
Name of December 31, December 31,
investor Name of subsidiary Principal activity 2016 2015
Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu Merit / Cofcojoycome Agricnlture Development Co., Ltd. Dieveloping hog Farming 60.00 % -
technology and trading
Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu Chainwin Agriculture and Animal Technology Co., Lid. Developing hog farming 100.00 % -
technology and trading
Chainwin Cayman Formosa Fortune Group Co., Ltd. (abbrev. Formosa BVI) Investment activities 100.00 % -
Chainwin Cayman Jiangsu Merit Runfu Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. Developing hog farming 50.44 % -
technology and trading
Fortune BVI Jiangsa Merit Runfu Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. Developing hog farming 49.56 % -
technolegy and trading

Note 1: Win Cayman does not hold more than half of the equity shares of Chainwin Cayman, directly or indirectly. However, Win
Cayman has acquired the right to manage the operating policies of Chainwin Cayman and has control over its Board of
Directors since Avgust 19, 2016. Therefore, Chainwin Cayman is deemed to be a subsidiary of Win Cayman. Please refer
to 6(g) for further information.

Note 2: Jiangsu Kang Yuan Merit Agriculture Development Co., Ltd renamed Jiangsu Chainwin Kang Yuan Agricuiture
Development Co., Ltd. in January 2017,

(iii) List of subsidiaries which are not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.

(d) Foreign currency

M

(i)

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the
Group at the exchange rates of the end of each reporting period (“the reporting date™).
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate of that date. The foreign currency
gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between the amortised cost in the functional
currency at the beginning of the year adjusted for the effective interest and the payments
during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at
the reporting date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate of the date the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of translation.

Foreign currency differences arising from retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except
for the following differences which are recognised in other comprehensive income that arises
from the retranslation:

¢ available-for-sale equity investment;

¢ financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the
extent that the hedge is effective; or

e qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent the hedge is effective.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
(Continued)
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arising on acquisition, are translated to the reporting currency of the consolidated financial
statements at the exchange rates of the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to the reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements at
average rate. Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, and
presented in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity.

However, if the foreign operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant
proportion of the tramslation difference is allocated to non-controlling interests. When a
foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost,
the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes any part of its
interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interest. When the
Group disposes of only part of investment in an associate of joint venture that includes a
foreign operation while retaining significant or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a-monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is
neither planned nor likely predicted in the foreseeable future, the foreign currency gains and
losses arising from such items are considered to a part of investment in the foreign operation
and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in

equity.

(e) Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An entity shall classify an asset as current when:

&)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it in its normal operating cycle;
It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
It expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

If the asset is cash and cash equivalent (unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period).

An entity shall classify all other assets as non-current.

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:

Q)

(i)
(iii)
@)

It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issvance of equity instruments that do not affect its
classification.

(Continued)
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An entity shall classify all other liabilities as non-current.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprised of cash on hand and cash in bank. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits, which meet the above criteria and for the
purpose of fulfilling short-term commitments instead of the purpose of investing activities or others,
are categorized as cash equivalents.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. A regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognised and derecognised as applicable
using trade date accounting.

1)

2)

3

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the short term. This type of financial asset is measured at fair
value at the time of initial recognition, and attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and changes therein, (which takes into account any dividend and
interest income), are recognised in profit or loss, and it is included in other gains and
losses, and other income, respectively.

Available-for sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the other categories of financial assets.
Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, plus, any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair
value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, dividend income, and foreign currency differences on
available-for-sale debt instruments, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognised, the
gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss, and it is included in
other gains and losses. '

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables comprise irade receivables, other
receivables, and non-current debt instrument investment without active market. Such

(Continued)
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assets are recognised initially at fair value, plus, any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses, other than
insignificant interest on shori-term receivables. Interest income is recognised in profit or
loss, and it is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is impaired if, and only if, there is any objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
stand that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a
debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse
changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers, economic conditions that correlate
with defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an
investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below
its cost is accounted for as objective evidence of impairment.

All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. Receivables
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics. In assessing collective impairment, the
Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries, and
the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or
lesser than those suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is reduced from the carrying amount,
except for trade receivables in which an impairment loss is reflected in an allowance
account against the receivables. When it is determined a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off from the allowance account. Any subsequent recovery of receivable written
off is recorded in the allowance account. Changes in the amount of the allowance
accounts are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying
the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss.

(Continued)
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss of a financial assets
measured at amortised cost decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the decrease in impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost before the impairment was recognised at the reversal date.

Impairment losses recognised on available-for-sale equity security are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired
available-for-sale equity security is recognised in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in other equity. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired
available-for-sale debt security increases and the increase can be related objectively to an
event ocourring afier the impairment loss was recognised, then the impairment loss is
reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses and recoveries in respect of accounts receivable are recognized in
operating expenses. Impairment losses and recoveries in respect of the financial assets
other than accounts receivables are recognised in profit or loss, and it is included in other
gains and losses.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises financial assets when the contractual rights of the cash inflow

from the asset are terminated, or when the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and any cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in other
equity interest—unrealised gains (losses) on available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in profit or loss, and included in other gains and losses.

The Group allocates between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
derecognised based on the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.

The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised and any cumulative gain or
loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income shall be
recognised in profit or loss, and is included in other gains and losses.

A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
derecognised based on the relative fair values of those parts.

(Continued)
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(i) Financial liabilities

(ifi)

1)

2)

3)

4)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. This type of financial liability is measured at fair value at the
time of initial recognition, and attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value and changes therein, which takes into account any interest expense, are
recognised in profit or loss, and are included in other gains and losses, and finance costs,
respectively.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise of short and long borrowings, and {rade and other payables,
are not classified as held-for-trading, or designated as at fair value through profit or loss
shall be measured at fair value, plus, any directly attributable transaction cost at the time
of initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method. Interest expense not capitalised as
capital cost is recognised in profit or loss, and is included in finance costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligation has been
discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability removed and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss, and is included in other
gains and losses.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The Group presents financial assets and liabilities on a net basis when the Group has the
legally enforceable rights to offset, and intends to settle such financial assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments, including hedge accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
exposures. Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in profit or loss, and are included in
other gains and losses.

When a derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, its timing: of recognition in profit or
loss is determined based on the nature of the hedging relationship. When the fair value of a
derivative instrument is positive, it is classified as a financial asset, and when the fair value is
negative, it is classified as a financial liability.

(Continued)
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(h) Inventories

()

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
based on the weighted-average method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell on initial recognition, with any change
therein recognized in profit or loss at the end of each reporting period. Costs to sell include all costs
that would be necessary to sell the assets, excluding finance costs and tax expenses. Biological asset
does not have a quoted market price in an active market and for which alternative fair value
measurements are determined to be clearly unreliable. In such case, the asset is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, or joint
control over their financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when

the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognised initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates includes goodwill which arises from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment
losses.

The Consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity accounted investees after adjustments to align the accounting
policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until the date
that significant influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in associates, the carrying amount of the
investment, including any long-term interests that form part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or
has made payments on behalf of the investee.

(Continued)
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When the Group subscribes to additional shares in an associate at a percentage different from its
existing ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amount of the investment differs from the
amount of the Group’s proportionate interest in the net assets of the associate. The Group records
such a difference as an adjustment to investments with the corresponding amount charged or credited
to capital surplus. Moreover, a difference shall be debited to retained earnings when the balance of
capital surplus resulting from investments accounted for using equity method is not sufficient to be
written off. If the Group’s ownership interest is reduced due to the additional subscription to the
shares of associate, the proportionate amount of the gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate shall be reclassified to profit or loss on the same
basis as would be required if the associate or jointly controlled entity had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities -

Investment property

Investment property is the property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost both on initial
recognition and at subsequent period. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment property.

When the use of an investment property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment, its carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting.

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost consists of any cost directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located, and any borrowing cost are eligible for
capitalization.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately, unless the useful life and the
depreciation method of the significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment are the
same as the useful life and depreciation method of another significant part of that same item.

The gain or loss arising from the disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be
recognised as other gains and losses.

(i) Reclassification to investment property

The property is reclassified to investment property at its carrying amount when the use of the
property changes from owner-occupied to investment property.

(Continued)
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(iii) Subsequent cost

(iv)

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic

benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. The carrying amount of those
parts that are replaced is derecognized. Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensed as
incurred.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual amount and it
shall be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. The items of property, plant and
equipment with the same useful life may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge.
The remainder of the items may be depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each
period shall be recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

1)  Buildings and structures : 3 to 25 years
2} Machinery and equipment : 2 to 10 years
3)  Factory and equipment : 2 to 10 years

4)  Other equipment : 1 to 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. If
expectations differ from the previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

(m) Leases

(@

Lesser

Lease income from operating lease is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease is added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on
the same basis as the lease income. Incentives granted to the lessee to enter into the operating
lease are spread over the lease term on a straight-line basis so that the lease income received is
reduced accordingly.

Contingent rents are recogtiised as income in the period when the lease adjustments are
confirmed.

(Continued)
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Lessee

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. On initial recognition, the lease asset is measured at
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value with the present of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy applicable to the asset.

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised in the Group’s statement of financial
position.

Payments made under operating lease, excluding insurance and maintenance expenses, are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised as an integral part of the total Jease expense, over the term of the lease.

Contingent rent is recognised as expense in the periods in which they are incurred.

{n) Intangible assets

@

(D)

Goodwill
1)  Initial Recognition

Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognized as intangible assets. The
initial measurement and recognition of Goodwill please refer to note 6(g)iii .

2)  Subsequent measurement

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment loss on
equity investment in investees accounted for under the equity method is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of such investment.

Other intangible assets

Subsequent to the initial recognition, an intangible asset is measured at cost, less any
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, less its residual values. Intangible assets are
amortized from the date that they are available for use, the estimated useful lives for the
current and comparative periods are as follows: '

1}  Technical know-how: 12 years
2)  Computer software and information systems: 1 to 3 years
3} Others: 1.5 to 5 years

The residual value, amortization period, and amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life shall be reviewed at least annually at each fiscal year-end. Any change shall
be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

(Continued)
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Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non financial assets, other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits and biological assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. If it is not possible to determine the recoverable amount for
the individual asset, then the Group will have to determine the recoverable amount for the asset’s
cash generating unit.

The recoverable amount for the individual asset or the cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced to its recoverable amount.
That reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss shall be recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The Group should assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognised in prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have
decreased. An impairment loss recognised in prior periods shall be reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognized. If this is the case, the carrying amount of the asset shall be increased to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount net of depreciation or amortization that would have
been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Notwithstanding whether indicators exist, recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives or those not yet in use are required to be tested at least annually. Impairment
loss is recognised if the recoverable amount is Iess than the carrying amount.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination shall, from the
acquisition date, be allocated to each of the acquirer’s cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those units or group of units.

If the carrying amount of the cash-generating units exceeds the recoverable amount of the unit, the
entity shall recognize the impairment loss and the impairment loss shall be allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Reversal of an impairment loss for goodwill is prohibited.

Treasury stock

Repurchased shares are recognized under treasury shares (a contra-equity account) based on their
repurchase price (including all directly accountable costs). Gains on disposal of treasury shares
should be recognized under “capital reserve — treasury share transactions”. Losses on disposal of
treasury shares should be offset against existing capital reserves arising from similar types of
treasury shares. If there are insufficient capital reserves to be offset against, then such losses should
be accounted for under retained earnings. The carrying amount of treasury shares should be
calculated using the weighted average of different types of repurchase.

(Continued)



(q)

®

26

WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

During the cancellation of treasury shares, “capital reserve — share premiums” and “share capital”
should be debited proportionately. Gains on cancellation of treasury shares should be recognized
under existing capital reserves arising from similar types of treasury shares. If there are insufficient
capital reserves to be offset against, then such losses should be accounted for under retained
earnings. Losses on cancellation of treasury shares should be offset against existing capital reserves.

Revenue

)

(i)

Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates.
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed
sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible
return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with
the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts
will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is recognised as a
reduction of revenue as the sales are recognized.

Rent income

Lease income from investment property is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. An incentive granted to the lessee is to be recognized as part of the lease
income and it is spread over the lease term on a straight-line basis so that the lease income
received is reduced accordingly.

Income from sublease is recognized in profit or loss, and is included in other gains and losses.

Employee benefits

®

(i)

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined coniribution
plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit pension plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The fair value of the plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is
the yield at the reporting date on market yields of government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the same
currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

(Continued)
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The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited
to the total of the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirements that apply to any plan in the Group. An economic benefit is available to the
Group if it is realisable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

If the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past
service by employees is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), which comprise (1) actuarial gains
and losses, (2) the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in the net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)), and (3) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding amounts included in the net interest on the defined benefit liability (asset)), are
recognized in other comprehensive income. The Group reclassifies the amounts recognized in
other comprehensive income to retained earnings.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognized when
the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment arises from any change in
the fair value of plan assets and, any change in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation.

(ifi) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed when the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or
profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Share-based payment

The grant-date fair valve of share-based payment awards granted to employee is recognised as
employee expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards which the related service and non-market performance conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number
of award that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between
the expected and the actual outcomes.

(Continued)
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Income taxes

Income tax expenses include both current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to
business combinations, or are recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all
current and deferred taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes include tax payables and tax deduction receivables on taxable gains (losses) for the
year calculated using the statutory tax rate on the reporting date or the actual legislative tax rate, as
well as tax adjustments related to prior years.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes shall not be
recognized for the below exceptions:

(i) Assets and liabilities that are initially recognized but are not related to the business
combination and have no effect on net income or taxable gains (losses) during the transaction.

(ii) Temporary differences arising from equity investments in subsidiaries or joint ventures where
there is a high probability that such temporary differences will not reverse.

(iii) Initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities may be offset against each other if the following criteria are met:
(i) The entity has the legal right to settle tax assets and liabilities on a net basis; and
(ii} the taxing of deferred tax assets and liabilities fulfill one of the below scenarios:

1)  levied by the same taxing authority; or

2) levied by different taxing authorities, but where each such authority intends to settle tax
assets and liabilities (where such amounts are significant) on a net basis every year of the
period of expected asset realization or debt liquidation, or where the timing of asset
realization and debt liquidation is matched.

A deferred tax asset should be recognized for the carry-forward of unused tax losses, unused tax
credits, and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible
temporary differences shall also be re-evaluated every year on the financial reporting date, and
adjusted based on the probability that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused
tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

(Continued)
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Business combinations

Goodwill is measured at the consideration transferred less the amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed (generally at fair value) at the acquisition date. If the amount of net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the acquisition price, the Group re-assesses whether
it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and recognize a gain for
the excess.

The Group shall measure any non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets if the non-
controlling interests are present ownership inferests.

In a business combination achieved in batches, the previously held equity interest in the acquiree at
its acquisition-date fair value is re-measured, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in
profit or loss. In prior reporting periods, the Group may have recognized changes in the value of its
equity interest in the acquiree in other comprehensive income. If so, the amount that was recognized
in other comprehensive income shall be recognized on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed the previously held equity interest. If the disposal of the equity interest
required a reclassification to profit or loss, such an amount shall be reclassified to profit or loss.

All transaction costs relating to a business combination are recognized immediately as expenses
when incurred, except for the issuance of debt or equity instruments.

Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholder of the Company divided by weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
such as employee stock options and employee remuneration.

Operating segment

An operating segment is 2 component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed
by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and assess its performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial
information.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the IFRSs endorsed by the
FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of the
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual resulis
may differ from these estimates.

(Continued)
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The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the next period.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies do not have significant effects on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year is as follows:

(a) Valuation of inventories

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Group estimates the net
realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the reporting
pericd and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The valuation of
inventories is mainly determined based on assumptions as to future demand within a specific time
horizon. Due to the rapid industrial transformation, there may be significant changes in the net
realizable value of inventories.

(b) Business combinations

The related accounting of the business combinations, including consideration transferred, recognized
amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are measured on the basis
of market unobservable data. It depends on the management’s subjective judgment and causes higher
uncertainty.

The accounting policy and disclosure of the Group include that measuring the financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value. The Group uses external information to make the evaluation result agreed
to market status and to confirm the data resource is independent reliable and consistent with other
resource. The Group regularly revises the inputs and any essential adjustments on the fair value to
confirm that evaluation results is reasonable. The Group regularly evaluates investment property using the
evaluation methods and parametric assumptions announced by FSC.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group usually uses market observable data.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

(c) Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(d) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

{e) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
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The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following

notes:

(a) Note 6(j)-Investment property.

(b) Note 6(w)-Financial instruments.

(6) Explanation of significant accounts:

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

(b)

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015

Cash on hand 3 227 200
Cash in bank 2,212,048 650,406
Time deposits 175,868 1,219,051
$ 2,388,143 1,869,657

Refer to note 6(w) for the fair value sensitivity analysis and interest rate risk of the financial assets
and liabilities of the Group.

Financial instruments

®

(i)

Current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015
Stocks listed on domestic markets $ 153,794 125,783
Money market funds, eqﬁity funds and bond funds
: 64.456 888.905
$ 218,250 1,014,688

Refer to note 6(v) for the gains or losses on disposals of investment and the amount of
remeasurement at fair value though profit or loss.

Current available-for-sale financial assets:

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Stocks listed on domestic markets $ 974,767 629.823

(Continued)
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(iii} Non-current available-for-sale financial assets:

(iv)

)

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Stocks listed on domestic markets $ 13,628 20,560
Stocks listed on foreign markets 427,563 357,396
Non-public stocks 656,245 549,815
Private fund (Note) 527,831 340,950

3 1,625,267 1,268,721

Note: As of December 31, 2016, the private fund is during the lock-up period.
Refer to not 6(v) for the gain or losses on disposals of investments.

Non-current financial assets at cost:

December 31,
2016

Foreign unlisted stocks 5 24,832

Less: accumulated impairment -
Total $ 24,832

According to the Group’s intention, its investment in foreign ualisted stocks should be
classified as available-for-sale financial assefs. However, as foreign unlisted stocks are not
traded in active market, and no sufficient industry information of companies similar to such
foreign unlisted stocks’ or its financial information cannot be obtained, the fair value of the
investment in foreign unlisted stocks cannot be measured reliably. The Group classified those
stocks as “Non-current financial assets at cost”.

As of December 31, 2015, there was no such transactions.

Non-current investments in debt instrument without active market:

Nominal December 31, December
Issue period rate (%) 2016 31,2015

Preferred stock B 2012.11.23~2019.11.22 - % $ 92,600 159,600

(Continued)
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(vi) Sensitivity analysis in the equity price risk:

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the sensitivity analyses for the changes in
the securities price at the reporting date as illustrated below:

2016 2015

After-tax other After-tax other
Prices of securities at  comprehensive After-tax comprehensive After-tax
the reporting date income profit (loss) income profit {loss)
Increasing 3% s 78,001 6,548 56,956 30,441
Decreasing 3% ] (78.001) (6,548) (56,956) (30,441)

(vii) As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the financial assets were not pledged. For information on
the Group’s currency risk and credit risk was disclosed in note 6(w).

Notes and accounts receivable, net

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Notes receivable b - 100
Accounts receivable 1,071,937 705,601
Less : allowance for doubtful accounts (3.223) (5.673)
$ 1,068,714 700,028

At the reporting date, the Group’s aging analysis of notes and accounts receivable that were past due
and not impaired, were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Past due 1~60 days $ 96,438 26,304
Past due 61~180 days ' 2,023 1,882
Past due more than 181 days - -
b 98.461 28,186

The movement of allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows:

Individually  Collectively

assessed assessed
impairment  impairment Total
Balance at January 1, 2016 $ 5,673 - 5,673
Impairment loss recognised 1,553 - 1,553
Uncollected amounts written off (3,962) - (3,962)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates (41) - (41)
Balance at December 31, 2016 h) 3,223 - 3.223
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Individually  Collectively

assessed assessed
impairment impairment Total
Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 5,590 - 5,590
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates &3 - 83
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 5,673 - 5,673

The Group’s policy of allowance for receivables is as follows:
Assessment method:

(i) At the balance sheet date, the Group evaluates the probability of collection regarding the
receivable in accordance with each customer.

(ii) The Group may recognise 100% allowance of doubtful accounts based on the expectancy of
bad debt by assessing the financial and operating conditions of each customer.

Impairment loss recognised for individually assessed impairment was the difference between the

carrying amount and the amount expected to be collected. The Group also considered the fluctuation
of the economic circumstances and historical collection to determine the recognition of impairment.

The Group establishes a policy of allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical trends of the
probability of default and the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred. The policy is
mainly based on the characteristic of industry and the conservative of business cove.

The Group believed that no impairment allowance was necessary with respect to the past due
receivables that were collectable.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the notes and accounts receivable, net were not pledged.
(d) Inventories

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015
Raw materials, supplies and spare parts $ 1,868,533 1,505,390
Work in process 559,185 732,353
Finished goods 299,714 233,627
$ 2,727,432 2.471.370
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Except cost of goods sold and inventories recognized as expenses, the remaining gain or losses
which were recognised as operating cost or deduction of operating cost were as follows:

2016 2015
Loss on valuation of inventories and obsolescence $ 39.661 27.454
Revenue from sale of scraps $ (7.323) (21.445)

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the inventories were not pledged.

Biological assets

M

(i)

(iii)

List of biclogical assets:

December 31,

2016

Consumable biological assets $ 133,029
Bearer biological assets $ 48,290
Change in biological assets:

Acquisition through business combinations (note 6(g)) $ 197,900
Increase due to purchases 28,525
Input costs 216,402
Depreciation expenses (2,886)
Decrease due to sales (267,254)
Changes in fair value less costs to sell due to price changes 16,959
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates (8.327)
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 181,319
Current $ 133,029
Non-current 48.290

$ 181,319

The gain of $16,959 thousand was recognized as net other income (experse) of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as a result of the remeasurement of
biological assets at the lower of its carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, number of the biological assets as follows:

December 31,
2016

Farrows, hogs and breeders 34,100

From acquisition date to the reporting date, the Group sold 19,389 hogs.

(Continued)
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(iv) Fair value

The Group uses valuation method to measure its biological assets to determine the fair value of
the hogs and the farrows (which are required to reach a certain weight), less, cost to sell at the
end of the reporting period. If biological asset does not have a quoted market price in an active
market, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Costs of the biological assets include all of the costs within the growth cycle, such as the cost
of new-born farrows, the feed and the raising farm. The cost of the productive biological assets
shall be depreciated on a systematic basis over the producible term. The amortized term are
within 24 to 36 months. In 2016, the depreciation expenses of biological assets (which will be
converted into its breeding biological assets) were $2,886 thousand.

(v) The Group is exposed to the following risks relating to its hog farming.
1) Regulations and environmental risks

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in various countries in which it operates.
The Group has established environmental policies and procedures aimed at complying
with the local environment and other laws. Management performs regular reviews to
identify environmental risks and to ensure that systems in place are adequate to manage
those risks.

2)  Supply and demand risks

The Group is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in the price and sales volume of
hogs. When possible, the Group manages this risk by aligning its farming volume with
market supply and demand. Management performs regular industry trend analyses to
ensure that the Group’s pricing structure is in line with the market and to ensure that
projected farming volumes are consistent with the expected demand.

3) Climate and other risks

The Group’s hog farming is exposed to the risk of damage from climate change, diseases,
and other natural forces. The Group has extensive processes in place aimed at monitoring
and mitigating those risks, including regular pig health inspections and industry pest and
disease surveys.

(vi) The biological assets were not pledged.
Investments accounted for using equity method

The components of investments accounted for using the equity method at the reporting date were as
follows:

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Associates s 291,036 657.960
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Associates

On January 28, 2015, the Group acquired 42.74% of the shares of Phalanx Biotech Group, Inc.
for $220,000 thousand in cash, and has significant influence on it. In April 2015, Phalanx
Biotech Group, Inc. approved a cash subscription, the Group did not subscribe any new shares.
Therefore, the percentage of the Group’s ownership declined to 37.88%. The Group still has
significant influence on Phalanx Biotech Group, Inc.

On December 14, 2015, the Group acquired 40% of the shares of Rainbow Star Group Limited
for $32,590 thousand in cash, and has significant influence on it.

Summary of financial information for the individually insignificant investments in associates
accounted for using the equity method were as follows. The aforementioned financial

information was included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

Total equity of the individually insignificant
investments in associates S 291,036 657,960

2016 2015

Attributable to the Group:

Net loss $ (49,835) (109,979)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 301 (303)
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ (49.534) (110,282)

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Group recognized impairment loss amounting to
$65,050 thousand due to the impaired securities. The impairment loss was recorded under
operating costs and other gains or losses. For the year ended December 31, 2016, there was no
aforementioned issue.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the investments accounted for using equity method were
not pledged.

Acquisition of subsidiary

On November 18, 2015, the Group acquired 28.63% shares of Merit Biotech (Cayman Islands) Co.,
Ltd. for $195,540 thousand in cash, and has a significant influence on it. For the six months ended
June 30, 2016, the Group subscribed the new shares contributed by Merit Biotech (Cayman Islands)

Co,,

Ltd. for $486,720 thousand.

On August 19, 2016, Merit Biotech (Cayman Islands) Co., Ltd. was renamed Chainwin Agriculture
and Animal Technology (Cayman Islands) Ltd. (abbrev. Chainwin Cayman). The principal activities
of Chainwin Cayman and its subsidiaries are developing hog farming technology and trading.
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The Group has controlled over Chainwin Cayman through its re-elected Board of Directors on
August 19, 2016. The Group held 43.75% of equity shares.

From the acquisition date to December 31, 2016, Chainwin Cayman contributed revenue and net
income of $187,588 thousand and $53,088 thousand, respectively. If the acquisition had occurred on
January 1, 2016, the management estimates that consolidated revenue would have been $384,758
thousand and the consolidated net income would have been $105,180 thousand. The
abovementioned influences do not include adjustments on fair value.

The acquisition-date fair value of major class of consideration transferred were as follows:

(i) Consideration transferred

The Group has acquired the right to manage operating policies of Chainwin Cayman and has
controlled over its board of directors. The Group expects Chainwin Cayman’s future
generated cash flow in accordance with the income approach that reflects the time value of
investment and the risk of the discounted cash flow, and evaluates the implied consideration
transferred of controlling over Chainwin Cayman.

The fair value measurement for the controlling interests has been categorized as a Level 3 fair
value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. The key assumptions are as follows:

1) The discount rate is based on the weighted-average cost of capital that computed by
Chainwin Cayman and its comparable capital structures and corresponded by the market
value.

2) Five years of cash flows were included in the discounted cash flow model. A long-term
growth rate into perpetuity has been determined as the long-term compound annual
eamings before inferest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) growth rate
estimated by management. Budgeted EBITDA was based on expectations of future
outcomes taking info account past experience, adjusted for the anticipated revenue
growth. Revenue growth was projected taking into account the average growth levels
experienced over the past and the estimated sales volume and price growth for the next
five years. It was assumed that sales price would grow at a constant margin above
forecast inflation over the next five years, in line with information obtained from external
brokers who publish a statistical analysis of long-term market trends.

The shares of Chainwin Cayman held by the Group were measured and the fair value per
share was USD$2.1 at the acquisition date.
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The following table summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date.

Cash and cash equivalents $ 963,765
Accounts receivable 21,685
Inventories 13,073
Current biological assets {note 6(e)) 172,664
Other current assets 43,549
Financial assets at cost 24,578
Non-current biclogical asseis (note 6(¢e)) 25,236
Property, plant and equipment (note 6(i)) 100,278
Intangible assets (note 6(k)) 21,964
Other non-current assets 29,797
Notes payable and accounts payable (52,345)
Other current liabilities (57.826)
Total identifiable net assets acquired $ 1.306.418

The gross contractual amounts of accounts receivable totaled $21,685 thousand. On the
acquisition date, accounts receivable was expected to be collected.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognized as follows:
Fair value of pre-existing interest in Chainwin Cayman $ 703,836
Non-controlling interest in the acquiree, if any (proportionate share

of the fair value of the identifiable net assets) 734,860
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets (1.306,418)
Goodwill (note 6(k)) S 132,278

The Group re-measured the fair value of its existing equity interest in Chainwin Cayman
before the business combination, and the resulting gain of $17,088 thousand is recognized as
“gains arising from disposal of investment”.

Goodwill mainly attributed to the profitability of the hog farming and technical talent of
Chainwin Cayman work force. Due to the fact that the enterprise regional income tax rate of
the investee is 0%, the Group did not expect goodwill arisen from the consolidations to be
deductible for tax purposes.
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(h) Material non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
The material non-controlling interests of subsidiaries were as follows:

Percentage of non-
controlling interests

Subsidiaries Main operation place December 31, 2016
Chainwin Cayman Cayman Islands 56.25 %

The following information of the aforementioned subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers. Included
in these information are the fair value adjustment made during the acquisition and relevant
difference in accounting principles between the Group as at the acquisition date. Intra-group
transactions were not eliminated in this information.

December 31,

2016
Current assets $ 1,000,869
Non-current assets 334,984
Current liabilities (85,042)
Non-current liabilities -
Net assets 5 1,250,811

2016

Operating revenue $ 384,758
Profit _ $ 22,896
Other comprehensive income (loss) (46.703)
Total comprehensive income (loss) b (23.807)
Net cash flows used in operating activities $ (58,040)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (63,022)
Net cash flows from financing activities 340,618
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate (29.232)
Increase on cash and cash equivalenis S 690,324
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From the acquisition date, the non-controlling interests are allocated during the reporting period as

follows:

Non-controlling interests S 691,445
Loss, attributable to non-controlling interests $ (16,469)
Comprehensive income (loss), attributable to non-controlling interests  § (43.415)

(i) Property, plant and equipment

The cost and accumulated depreciation of the property, plant and equipment of the Group for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Buildings and Machinery and Factory and Other Construction
Land structures equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
Cost :
Balance as of Janvary 1, 2016 5 2,546,534 1,000,117 12,551,818 2,820,770 228,809 2,257410 21,405,458
Acaquisitions through business
combinations - 11,902 - 33,022 30,826 38,947 114,697
Additions - 180,543 1,183,124 519,491 938,914 287,026 2,269,008
Reclassification (Note 1) - 067,324 1,765,380 1,112,941 58,049 {2,221,867) 1,681,827
Disposals - (28,903) (320,837) (434,646) (129,991) - (914,377)
Effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates - (443) - (1,229) (1,150) (1,614) {4.436)
Balance as of December 31,2016 § 2,546,534 2,130,540 15,179,485 4,050,349 285,457 359,502 24,552,267
Balance as of January I, 2015 $ 2,546,534 998,111 11,724,452 2,773,866 193,297 1,345,584 19,581,844
Additions - 2,006 690,919 43,657 72,876 915,073 1,724,531
Reclassification (Note 2) - - 145,879 3,247 - (3,247) 145,879
Disposals - - {9432) - (37.364) - (46,796)
Balance as of December 31,2015 § 2,546,534 1,000,117 12,551,818 2,820,770 228,809 2,257,410 21,405,458
Accumulated depreciation :
Balance as of January 1, 2016 H - 429,291 7,514,001 1,681,770 157,206 - 9,782,268
Acquisitions through business
combinations - 2427 - 7110 4882 - 14,419
Depreciation - 81,030 1,865,423 306,975 66,286 - 2,319,714
Disposals - (27,366) (320,567) (434,645) (129.974) - (912,552)
Effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates - 94) “ (280) {186) - (560)
Balance as of December 31,2016 § - 485,288 9,058,857 1,560,930 98,214 - 11,203,289
Balance as of January 1, 2015 H - 370,746 5,934,630 1,449,642 174,316 - 7,929,334
Depreciation - 58,545 1,583,067 232,128 20,254 - 1,893,994
Disposals - - (3,696) - (37,364) - (41,060)
Balance as of December 31,2015 § - 429,291 7,514,001 1,681,770 157,206 - 9,782,268
Carrying value *
Balance as of December 31, 2016 § 2,546,534 1,645,252 6,120,628 2,489,415 187,243 359,902 13,348,978
Balance as of January 1, 2015 s 2,546,534 627,365 5,789,822 1,324,224 18,981 1,345,584 11,652,510
Balance as of December 31,2015 § 2,546,534 570,826 5,037,817 1,139,000 71,603 2,257,410 11,623,190

Note 1: Inventories and prepayments for business facilitics were rectassified as property, plant and equipment. Besides, property, plant and
equipment were classified as investment property.

Note 2; Prepayments for business facilities were reclassified as property, plant and equipment,
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(i) Pledge to secure:

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, property, plant and equipment were subject to a registered
debenture to secured bank loans, the collateral for these long-term borrowings was disclosed in
note 8.

(ii) Property, plant and equipment under construction

In 2012, the Group acquired land, buildings and structures for the construction a new factory.
As of December 31, 2016, the completion of preceding construction of the factory had been
reclassified to property, plant and equipment and investment property.

(iii) For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, capitalized interest expenses amounted to
$30,975 thousand and $40,623 thousand, respectively. The annual interest rates at which these
interest expenses were capitalized ranged from 1.37%~1.64% and 1.55%~1.79%, respectively.

(i) Investment property

Buildings and
Land structures Total

Cost :

Balance as of January 1, 2016 $ 963,127 138,225 1,101,352

Reclassification (Note) - 397,783 397.783

Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 963,127 536,008 1,499,135

Balance as of January 1, 2015 $ 963,127 138,225 1,101,352

Additions - - -

Balance as of December 31, 2015 3 963,127 138.225 1,101,352
Accumulated depreciation -

Balance as of January 1, 2016 $ - 15,506 15,506

Depreciation - 15,516 15.516

Balance as of December 31, 2016 3 - 31,022 31,022

Balance as of January 1, 2015 $ - 10,190 10,190

Depreciation - 5316 5316

Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ - 15,506 15,506
Carrying value :

Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 963,127 504,986 1,468,113

Balance as of January 1, 2015 $ 963,127 128,035 1,091,162

Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ 963.127 122,719 1,085,846
Fair value :

Balance as of December 31, 2016 h 1,639,399

Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ 1,232,437

Note: Prepayments for business and property, plant and equipment were reclassified as investment property.
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When measuring the fair value of its investment property, the Group considered the present value of
net cash flows to be generated from leasing the property. The expected net cash flows were
discounted using the yield to reflect its specified inherit risk on the net cash flows. The inputs to the
valuation technique used for measuring fair value were categorized as a Level 2 fair value.

The yield applied to the net annual rentals to determine fair value of property for which current
prices in an active market were unavailable, was as follows:

Location For the years ended December 31, 2016
Hsinchu 0.21%
Taoyuan 2.12%

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, investment property were subject to a registered debenture to
secured bank loans, the collateral for these long-term borrowings was disclosed in note 8.

Intangible assets
(i} The movement in intangibie assets for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as
follows:
Computer
software and
Technical information
know-how systems Goodwill Others Total
Cost :

Balance as of January 1, 2016 $ 46,005 57,702 - 1,843 105,550
Acquisition through business

combinations 48 - 132,278 21,929 154,255
Additions - 40,537 - 4,774 45,311
Disposals - (13,503) - {1,005) (14,508)
Effect of changes in foreign

exchange rates (2) - 1,367 227 1,592
Balance as of December 31, 2016 § 46,051 84,736 133,645 27,768 292,200
Balance as of January 1, 2015 $ 46,005 48,044 - - 94,049
Additions - 29,886 - 1,843 31,729
Disposals - (20,228) - - {20,228)
Balance as of December 31, 2015 § 46,005 57,702 - 1,843 105,550

Amortisation :

Balance as of January 1, 2016 $ 19,808 22,767 - 603 43,180
Acquisition through business

combinations i3 - - - 13
Amortisation 3,836 25,666 - 4,441 33,943
Disposals - (13,503) - (1,005) (14,508)
Effect of changes in foreign

exchange rates 0] - - 34 33
Balance as of December 31, 2016 § 23,656 34,930 - 4,075 62,661

(Continued)



44

WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Computer
software and

Technical information

know-how systems Goodwill QOthers Total
Balance as of January 1, 2015 $ 15,974 23,653 - - 39,627
Amortisation 3,834 19,342 - 605 23,781
Disposals - (20,228) - - (20,228)
Balance as of December 31, 2015 § 19,808 22,767 - 605 43,180

Carrying value :

Balance as of December 31, 2016 § 22,395 49,806 133,645 23,693 229,539
Balance as of January 1, 2015 b 30,031 24,391 - - 54,422
Balance as of December 31, 2015 § 26,197 34,935 - 1,238 62,370
(ii) Amortization expense recognized in profit or loss

(iii)

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amortization expenses of intangible
assets were as follows:

2016 2015
Operating costs $ 11,594 7,686
Operating expenses 22.349 16.095
$ 33,943 23,781

Impairment testing for goodwill

The total amount of goodwill has been allocated to the agriculture technology for the Group’s
impairment testing purpose. The cash generating units (the "CGU") are used as the minimum
level for investment return of goodwill supervised by the management.

According to the results of impairment tests executed by Group’s, the recoverable amount of
the abovementioned CGU was determined to be higher than the carrying amount of the CGU.

. As aresult, there were no impairment loss incurred as of December 31, 2016.

The key assumption used in the estimation of the value in use of the CGU were as follows:

1)  The future cash flow was based on expectations of future operations, taking into account
past experience, adjusted for the anticipated revenue growth. Revenue growth was
projected taking into account the average growth levels experienced over the past five
years, and the estimated sales volume and price growth for the next five years. The
assumptions were in line with the information obtained from external local market who
publish a statistical analysis on market trends.
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2)  The assumption on before-tax discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of
capital. The applied before-tax discount rate of the recoverable amount of the units were
as follow:

December 31, 2016
Discount rate 16.50%

(iv) As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the intangible assets were not pledged.
Other current assets and other non-current assets

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015

Other receivable from metal recycling $ 156,090 123,648
Tax refund receivable 68,579 116,165
Long-term prepaid rent 62,822 -
Prepaid expenses 65,706 39,7384
Restricted assets 25,571 25,481
Refundable deposits 34,930 23,260
Others 18,700 18.940

$ 432,398 347,278

Long-term prepaid rent

For the year ended December 31, 2016, for the hog farming purpose, the Group signed agreements
with agriculture developing committees and other institutions in China to acquire lands for lease.
The durations of the agreements are 5~30 years. Total agreement price amounted to RViB168,884
thousand.

Short-term borrowings

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Unsecured short-term borrowings S - 23,656
Unused bank credit lines for short-term borrowings $ 1,941,748 3.402,960
Unused bank credit lines for short-term and long-term
borrowings ' $ 1,352,188 1,694,367
Annual interest rate 0.63%~1.66% 0.79%
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(n) Long-term borrowings

December 31,2016  December 31, 2015

Unsecured long-term borrowings (settled in NTDD) $ 2,514,000 -

Secured long-term borrowings (settled in NTD) 2,099,943 2,940,303
Less : long-term liabilities, current portion {940,194 (841.507)
Total $ 3,673,749 2.098.796
Unused bank credit lines for long-term borrowings $ 2.002,000 1.458.000
Annual interest rafe 1.23%~1.64% 1.54%~1.64%
Expiry date 2018/2/18~2020/3/1 _2018/2/18~2020/3/1

As of December 31, 2016, the remaining balances of the borrowing due were as follows:

Year due Amount
January 1, 2017~December 31, 2017 $ 940,194
January 1, 2018~December 31, 2018 867,472
January 1, 2019~December 31, 2019 2,708,750
January 1, 2020~December 31, 2020 97,527
$ 4,613,943

The unused bank credit lines for short-term and long-term borrowings at the reporting date were
disclosed in note 6(m).

(i) For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group proceeded from long-term borrowings
amounting to $2,514,000 thousand with an interest rate of 1.23%~1.36%. For the year ended

December 31, 2015, the Group did not proceed any borrowings.

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the repayment amounfed to $841,506
thousand and $545,444 thousand, respectively.

(i) The collateral for these long-term borrowings was disclosed in note 8.

(iii) In January 2011, the Company entered into a seven-year syndicated loan agreement with Mega
International Commercial Bank and other sixteen banks. The total credit facility under this
loan agreement is $4,800,000 thousand and is due in February 2018.

The related financial covenants and restrictions for the syndicated loan mentioned above were
as follows:
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At the ended of the annual reporting period, current ratio shall not be lower than 100%,
liability ratio (Liabilities/Net asset value) shall not be higher than 120%, interest coverage ratio
shall not be less than 300%, and net equity shall not be less than $6,000,000 thousand.

For the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company was in compliance with the
above financial covenants and restrictions.

(o) Operating lease

M

(i)

Lease-lessor

The Group leased its investment property under operating lease, which was disclosed in note
6(j).

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the rental income recognised in other
income amounted to $68,793 thousand and $27,625 thousand, respectively.

Lease-lessee

The Group leases a number of parking lots etc. under operating lease. The leases typically run
for a period of 1 to 5 years.

For the vears ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the rent expense amounted to $33,264
thousand and $25,975 thousand, respectively, which were recorded as operating costs and
operating expenses.

(p) Employee benefits

@

Defined benefit plans

The movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan
assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Total present value of obligations 3 100,272 84,407
Fair value of plan assets (38.844) (37.896)
Recognised liabilities for defined benefit obligations
(Note) $ 61,428 46,511

(Note) Recognised liabilities for defined benefit obligations were recognised as other non-current liabilities.

The Group makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account in the Bank
of Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. Plans (covered by the Labor
Standards Law) entitle a refired employee to receive an arnual payment based on years of
service and average salary prior to six months of retirement.
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Composition of plan assets

The Group set aside pension funds in accordance with the legislation from the Ministry
of Labor and managed by the Bureau of Labor Founds. The annual budget for the
allocation of the mininrum income cannot be lower than the income calculated based on
the interest rate of the banks’ two-year time deposit in accordance with the legislation
“Management and Utilization of the Labor Pension Funds™.

The Group’s labor pension reserve account balance in the Bank of Taiwan amounted to

$38,844 thousand as of December 31, 2016. The utilization of the labor pension fund
assets includes the asset allocation and the yield of the fund. Please refer to the website
of Bureau of Labor Founds, Ministry of Labor.

The movement in present value of the defined benefit obligations

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, movements in the present value of the
defined benefit obligations for the Group were as follows:

2016 2015

Defined benefit obligation as of January 1 $ 84,407 75211
Current service costs and inferest _ 3,030 2,795
Net remeasurements of defined benefit liability

(asset)

— Actuarial {(gains) losses-Actuarial

assumption 6,348 1,436

-Experience gain and loss 6,487 5,105
(Gains) losses from prior service costs and

interest - (140)
Defined benefit obligation as of December 31  § 100,272 84.407

The movement in fair value of the defined benefit plan assets

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, movement in the fair value of the plan

- assets were as follows:

2016 2015

Fair value of plan assets as of Januvary 1 $ 37,896 36,252
Interest revenue 709 727
Net remeasurements of the defined benefit

liability (asset)

—Return on plan assets (excluding the

interest expense) (437) 237

Amounts contributed to plan 676 680
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 S 38.844 37.896

(Continued)



4)

3)

6)

7

49

WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The movement in effect of plan asset ceiling

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were no changes in the effect of
plan asset ceiling.

The expenses recognised in profit or losses

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the expenses recognised in profit or
losses for the Group were as follows:

2016 2015
Current service cost $ 1,487 1,330
Net interest expense of defined benefit plan 834 738
Prior service cost and settlement of defined benefit
plan - (140)
$ 2,321 1,928
2016 2015
Administrative expenses B 2,321 1,928

The remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognised in other
comprehensive income

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liability (asset) recognised in other comprehensive income were as follows:

2016 2015
Balance as of Janvaryl $ 17,595 11,291
Recongised in the current period 13,272 6.304
Balance as of December 31 b 30,867 17,595

Actuarial assumptions

At the end of the reporting date, the principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Discount rate 1.375 % 1.875 %
Future salary rate increases 3.000 % 3.000 %

The Group expects to make contributions of $239 thousand to the defined benefit plans
in the next year starting from December 31, 2016. The weighted average duration of the
defined benefit obligation is 17.94 years.

(Continued)
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8)  Sensitivity analysis

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the changes in main actuarial assumptions might
have an impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Effects to the defined benefit obligation
Increase by 0.25% Decrease by 0.25%

Balance as of December 31, 2016

Discount rate (3,247) 3,337
Future salary rate increases 3,272 (3,159)
Balance as of December 31, 2015

Discount rate (2,834) 2,960
Future salary rate increases 2,870 (2,778

There is no change in other assumptions when performing the above-mentioned
sensitivity analysis. In practice, assumptions may be interactive with each other. The
method used on sensitivity analysis is consistent with the calculation on the net pension
liabilities.

The method and assumptions used on sensitivity analysis in the year ended December 31,
2016 is the same as those of the year ended December 31, 2015.

Defined contribution plans

The Group set aside 6% of the contribution rate of the employee’s monthly wages to the Labor
Pension personal account of the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions
of the Labor Pension Act. The Group set aside a fixed amount to the Bureau of Labor
Insurance without the payment of additional legal or constructive obligations.

The Group set aside $61,235 thousand and $38,844 thousand of the pension under the pension
plan costs to the Bureau of Labor Insurance for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 .

The Group’s mainland subsidiaries have a defined contribution plan. Monthly contributions to
an independent fund administered by the government in accordance with the pension
regulations in the People’s Republic of China (PRC.) are based on certain percentage of
employees’ monthly salaries and wages. Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has
no further obligations. The term within the acquisition date to December 31, 2016, the Group
recognized the pension costs in accordance with the pension regulations and amounted to
$1,801 thousand.

(Continued)
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(q), Income tax

)

Income tax expense

The amount of income tax expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as
follows:

2016 2015

Current tax expense

Current period $ 771,979 766,227

Adjustment for prior periods (4,315) 15.884

773.664 782,111

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 17,575 (20.100)
Income tax expense 5 791,239 762,011

The amount of income tax (expenses) benefit recognised in other comprehensive income for
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

2016 2015

Components of other comprehensive income that will
not be classified to profit or loss:

The remeasurements of defined benefit plans k) 2,256 1,072

Reconciliation of income tax expenses (benefit) and profit before tax were as follows:

2016 2015
Profit before tax $ 3,887,544 3,433,638
Estimated income tax calculated using the Group's
domestic tax rate $ 664,722 583,718
Tax-exempt income (43,232) (3,151)
10% surtax on unappropriated earnings 210,090 162,107
Others (40,341) 19.337
$ 791,239 762,011

(Continued)
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(iiy Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Changes in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015 were as follows:
Difference in
depreciation
Allowance for expense between
obsolete financial and
inventories tax method Others Total
Deferred tax assets: :
Balance as of January 1, 2016 b 30,379 12,841 41,884 85,104
Recognised in profit or loss 2,572 1,108 (15,686) (12,008)
Recognised in other comprehensive income - - 2.256 2,256
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ 32,951 13,949 28,454 75,354
Balance as of January 1, 2015 $ 28,016 10,681 27,438 66,135
Recognised in profit or loss 2,363 2,160 13,374 17,897
(Recognised in other comprehensive income - - 1,072 1.072
Balance as of December 31, 2015 3 30,379 12,841 41,884 85,104
Unrealized
investment
income
recognized
under equity Unrealized
method exchange rate Others Total
Deferred tax liabilities:
Balance as of January 1, 2016 3 28,159 - - 28,159
Recognised in profit or loss 3,359 2,010 - 5,569
Balance as of December 31, 2016 b} 31,718 2,010 - 33,728
Balance as of January 1, 2015 5 25,993 4,369 - 30,362
Recognised in profit or loss 2,166 (4,369) - (2,203}
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ 28,159 - - 28,159

(iii) Examination and approval

(iv)

The Company’s corporate income tax returns for the years through 2014 were assessed and
approved by the tax authorities National Taxation Bureau of the Northern Area, Ministry of
Finance. However, there was controversy over the expiration of the loss carryfowards for the
year 2012. The Group expected to apply for constitutional interpretation.

The Company’s integrated income tax information at the reporting date were as follows :

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015
Unappropriated earnings after 1997 $ 8.308.684 6.244.544
Balance of imputation credit account (ICA) S 1.540.683 786,268
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2016(Estimated)  2015(Actual)

Creditable ratio for distributed to domestic
shareholders of earnings 24.06 % 24.04 %

According to the amendment by the Ministry of Finance on October, 17, 2013 under Decree
No. 10204562810, the Company’s integrated income tax should be covering the disclosed
information of imputation tax credit as above. According to the amended Income Tax Act
which was announced in June 2014, the amount of the deductible tax of an individual
shareholder residing in the territory of R.O.C. was calculated by 50% of its original tax
deduction ratio, starting from 2015. However, if the gross dividends or the gross earnings
received by a sharcholder residing outside the territory of the ROC contain any income subject
to a 10% surcharge on profit-seeking income tax which was actually paid under the provisions
of Article 66-6, half of the amount of the surcharge on profit-seeking income tax may offset the
amount of income tax which should be withheld from the payment of the net amount of such
dividends or earnings.

(r) Capital and other equity

@

Ordinary share

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s authorised share capital consisted of
1,000,000 thousand shares of ordinary share, with $10 dollars par value per share, of which
407,666 thousand shares, and 596,564 thousand shares, respectively, were issued and
outstanding. The Company has reserved $1,000,000 thousand for employee stock options.

Reconciliations of shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 :

Ordinary share (in thousands)

2016 2015
Balance as of January 1 596,564 742,238
Exercise of employee stock options 102 3,005
Capital reduction (179,000) (148,679)
Retirement of treasury share (10,0003 -
Balance as of December 31 407,666 596,564

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had issued 102 thousand
shares and 3,005 thousand shares resulting from the exercise of employee stock options,
respectively. The record dates were agreed on the end of each calendar quarter. All issued
shares were paid up upon issuances. The aforementioned stock issnance, which was authorized
by and registered with the government authorities, was included in ordinary share.

(Continued)



(ii)

iii)

54

WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company resolved a capital reduction of $1,789,999 thousand and $1,486,790 thousand,
representing 179,000 thousand shares and 148,679 thousand shares of outstanding shares as
approved in the shareholders’ meetings on June 24, 2016 and June 3, 2015, respectively. On
August 1, 2016 and July 2, 2015, the authority had already approved the application and the
Company’s Board of Directors resolved the record date as August 2, 2016 and July 9, 2015.
The related registration process had been completed.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company issued 11,121 thousand units of Global Depositary
Receipts (GDRs), representing 55,605 thousand ordinary shares of stock of the Company.

Capital surplus
Balance of capital surplus at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2016 2015
Additional paid-in capital $ 3,736,867 3,797,820
Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using equity method 21,163 15,614
Employee stock options 707 1,583
$ 3,758,737 3.815.017

In accordance with amended Company Act in 2012, realized capital reserves can only be
reclassified as share capital or be distributed as cash dividends after offsetting against losses.
The aforementioned capital reserves include share premiums and donation gains, In
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by
Securities Issuers, the actual amount of capital reserves to be reclassified under share capital
shall not exceed 10% of the actnal share capital amount.

Retained earnings

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation stipulate that 10% of the balance of annual income
or earnings after deducting accumulated deficit, if any, must be set aside as a legal reserve and
a special capital reserve is likewise appropriated or the annual income or earnings are retained
in accordance with the relevant laws or regulations or as requested by the authorities.
Otherwise, the distribution of remaining balance of the earnings should be further proposed by
the Board of Directors and resolved by the sharcholders' meeting. And the cash dividends
should not lower then 10% of the total stockholders' dividends.

As the Company is a technology and capital-intensive enterprise and is in its growth phase, it
has adopted a more prudent approach in appropriating its remaining earnings as its dividend
policy in order to sustain its long-term capital needs and thereby maintain continuous
development and steady growth.

{Continued)
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Legal reserve

According to the amended Company Act which was announced in January 2012, 10% of
net income should be set aside as statutory earnings reserve, until it equals the share
capital. If the Company experienced profit for the year, the meeting of shareholders shall
decide on the distribution of the legal reserve either by new shares or by cash of up to
25% of the actual share capital.

Special reverse

In accordance with Permit No. 1010012865 issued by the FSC on 6 April 2012, a portion
of current period earnings and undistributed prior period earnings shall be reclassified as
a special earnings reserve during earnings distribution. The amount to be reclassified
should be equal to the total net reduction of current period of other shareholders’ equity
resulting from the IFRS first-time adoption. Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior
period earnings shall be reclassified as a special earnings reserve (and does not qualify
for earnings distribution) to account for cumulative changes to other shareholders’ equity
pertaining to prior periods due to the IFRS first-time adoption. Amounts of subsequent
reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders’ equity shall qualify for
additional distributions.

Appropriations of earnings

The appropriations of earning for 2015 and 2014 had been approved in a sharcholders’
meeting held on June 24, 2016 and June 3, 2015, respectively. The appropriations and
dividends were as follows:

2015 2014
Cash dividends b 298,333 148,679

The above-mentioned appropriations of earnings for 2015 and 2014 were consistent with
the resolutions of the meeting of the Board of Directors.

In the shareholders’ meeting held on June 3, 2015, it resolved the employee bonuses and
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration amounted $176,700 thousand and $53,000
thousand, respectively. The above-mentioned appropriations of earnings were consistent
with those accrued and recognized for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The related information mentioned above can be found on websites such as the Market
Observation Post System.

Treasury shares

In 2016, in accordance with the requirements under section 28(2) of the Securities and
Exchange Act, the Company repurchased 13,920 thousand shares as treasury shares in

order to protect the Company's integrity and shareholders’ equity. As of December 31,
2016, a total of 3,920 thousand shares were not yet cancelled.
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In accordance with Securities and Exchange Act requirements as stated above, the
number of shares repurchased should not exceed 10 percent of the number of common
shares issued. Also, the total amount of the repurchased shares should not exceed the
sum of retained earnings, paid-in capital in excess of par value and other realized capital
surplus. The shares and doliar amount that may be repurchased do not exceed the upper
limit, which were calculated based on the audited or reviewed financial reports by a
certified accountant, for the latest accounting period prior to a resolution of a meeting of
the board of directors.

In accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Act, treasury held by the
Company should not be pledged, and do not hold any shareholder rights before their

transfer.

{(v) Other equity interest, net of tax

Balance as of January 1, 2016
Foreign currency differences (net of tax) :
The Group
Associates
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets (net of tax)

Cumulative gains (losses) reclassified to
profit or loss upon disposal of available-
for-sale financial assets (net of tax)

Balance as of December 31, 2016

Balance as of January 1, 2015
Foreign currency differences (net of tax) :
The Group
Associates
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets (net of tax)
Cumulative gains (losses) reclassified to

profit or loss upon disposat of available-
for-sale financial assets (net of tax)

Balance as of December 31, 2015

Exchange
differences on
translation of

foreign financial

Unrealized gains
(losses) on
available- for-sale

statements financial assets
19,783 363,161
{18,365) -
301 -
- 588,260
- (191.243)
1,719 760,178
Exchange

differences on
translation of
foreign financial

Unrealized gains
(losses) on
available- for-sale

statements financial assets
4,909 215,962
15,177 -
(303) -
- 138,341
- 8.858
19.783 363,161
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Share-based payment

The details of share-based payment were as follows:

Date of
approval by Date of

Board of approval by Estimated Actual Price of each share
Tiem Directors authority Issue date Duration issued shares issue shares {expressed in dollars)
2010 2010.07.05 2010.09.28 2011.01.26 5 years 10,000,000 10,000,000 3 284

)

The details of exercisable percentage of employee stock options were as follows:

Issued in 2010
Over one year -
Over two years 60 %
Over three years 100 %
Over four years 100 %
Over five years 100 %

Fair value of those options at the measurement date and information on how that fair value was
measured.

Had the Group used the fair value based method to evaluate the options using the Black-
Scholes model, the assumptions at the various grant dates would have been as follows:

2010 employee 2010 employee
stock options stock options
exercise in the exercise in the 3rd
2nd year year

Fair value at grant date (dollars) $ 4.30 5.30
Share price at grant date (dollars) $ 27.02 27.02
Exercise price (dollars) b 27.10 27.10
Expected volatility 3125 % 3125 %
Expected life 2 Years 3 Years
Risk-free interest rate 0.73 % 0.86 %

Expected volatility is based on the weighted-average of historical volatility, and it is adjusted
accordingly when there is additional market information about the volatility. The Group
determined the risk-free rate during the life of the option. These rates are determined based on
the government bonds, and they are in accordance with the regulations. Service and non-
market performance conditions attached to the fransactions are not takem into account in
determining the fair value.

(Continued)



58

WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(i) For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the related outstanding units and weighted-
average exercise price of employee stock options were as follows:

2016 2015
Weighted- Weighted-
average exercise average exercise
price (expressed Shares price (expressed Shares
in dollars) (in thousands) in dollars) (in thousands)
Outstanding at the beginning 3 28.40 142 22,70 3,147
Granted - - - -
Exercised 28.40 (102) 24.80 (3,005)
Expired - 40 - -
Qutstanding at the end - - 28.40 142
Exercisable as of December 31 - 142

As of December 31, 2015, the Group’s co:ilpensatory employee stock options outstanding were

as follows:
December 31, 2013
Outstanding Exercisable
Range of
exercise price Weighted- average Weighted-average
(expressed in Shares of remaining Shares exercise price
Issue date dollars) (in thousands) duration (years) (in thousands)  (expressed in dollars)

2011.01.26 3 28.4 142 0.07 142 b3 284

As of December 31, 2016, there was no compensatory employee stock options outstanding.
(iii) Compensation cost for employee stock options

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the compensation cost for employee stock
options both amounted to $0 thousand.

(Continued)
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Earnings per share ("EPS")
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s earnings per share were calculated
as follows:
2016
Weighted-
average number
of outstanding
shares of
common stock
Profit (in thousands) EPS (in dollars)
Basic EPS:
Profit belonging to common shareholders $ 3,112,774 515,536 § 6.04
Diluted EPS:
Effect of potentially dilutive common stock:
Employee remumeration - 3.695
Commen shareholders’ profit plus the effect
of potentially dilutive common stock S 3.112.774 519,231 § 5.99
2015
Weighted-
average number
of outstanding
shares of
common stock
Profit {in thousands) EPS (in dollars)
Basic EPS: '
Profit belonging to common shareholders $ 2,671,627 672,148 § 3.97
Diluted EPS:
Effect of potentially dilutive commeon stock:
Employee remuneration - 6,213
Employee stock options - 502
Common shareholders’ profit plus the effect
of potentially dilutive common stock S 2,671,627 678.863 3 3.94
Employees', directors' and supervisors' remuneration

According to the Company’s Article of Incorporation, if there is any net profit after closing of a
fiscal year, it shall be allocated according to the following principles:

(i) Employee remumeration: not less than 5% but no more than 10% and shall be determined and
pursuant to Employee Bonus Procedure of the Company. In addition, employee’s profit
sharing remuneration shall be distributed in the form of shares or cash. Stock-type employee
bonuses may be distributed to qualified employees of affiliates of the Company.

(Continued)
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(i) Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors: no more than 3%.

However, if there are any accumulated losses of the Company, the Company shall pre-reserve
the amount to offset the loss. The distribution of employees’ profit sharing bonus and
remuneration of Directors and Supervisors shall follow the special resolution by Board of
Directors, and report it to the shareholders’ meeting.

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 the Company accrued and recognised its
employee remuneration amounting to $263,000 thousand and $231,300 thousand, and
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration amounting to $76,300 thousand and $67,100
thousand, respectively. The amount of employee bonuses, and directors’ and supervisors’
remuneration were estimated based on profit before tax, net of the amount of the bonuses and
remuneration, and multiplied by the rule of Company’s Article of Incorporation. The above
bonuses and remuneration were included in the operating costs and operating expenses of the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. There was no differences between the actual
distributed amounts as determined by the Board of Directors and those recognised in the
financial statements, for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The related information mentioned above can be found on websites such as the Market
Observation Post System.

Non-operating income and expenses

®

(ii)

Other income

2016 2015
Interest income $ 11,104 20,280
Dividend income 52,747 36,871
Rent income 73,533 45,287
8 137,384 102.438
Other gains and losses
2016 2015
Foreign exchange gains (losses) $ (15,952) 66,552
Impairment loss on financial assets - (53,341)
Gains (losses) on disposals of investments 227,075 (13,285)
Gains (fosses) on financial assets or liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss 13,993 (2,356)
Gains (losses) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (2,786) 1,824
Other 96.002 (58.511)
$ 318,332 (59.,117)
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(iii) Finance costs

2016 2015
Interest expense on bank borrowings $ 50,770 53,445
Other interest expenses 425 1,030
Less: capitalized interest expense (30,975) (40.623)
b 20,220 13,852

(w) Financial instruments

(i) Creditrisk

1)

2)

Exposure of credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk is mainly from carrying amount of financial assets.
Cash and cash equivalents is deposited in different financial institutions to control the
credit risk exposed to single financial institution. The Group owns securities by
purchasing traded stocks and money market fund issued by high-credit-quality financial
institutions. The Group owns debt instrument investments issued by high-credit-quality
company. However, the credit risk involving securities is not expected to be significant.

Disclosures about concentrations of risk

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group’s notes and account receivables were both
concentrated on 7 and 4 customers, respectively, whose accounts represented 69% and
59% of the total notes and account receivables, respectively. In order to reduce the credit
risk on these account receivables, the Group continues to evaluate the financial status of
these customers and request for collaterals when necessary. The Group evaluates the
possible collectability of account receivables periodically and accrues allowance for
doubtful accounts, if necessary. Therefore, bad debt expense has always been under
management’s expectation. ‘

(i) Liquidity risk

The following were the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Carrying Contractual Over5
amount cash flows 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years years
As of December 31, 2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans $ 2,099,943 2,134,653 961,594 675,808 497,251 -
Unsecured bank loans 2,514,000 2,563,373 22,572 221,032 2,319,769 -
Accounts payable 975,478 975,478 975478 - - -
Other payables 971411 971,411 971.411 - - -
$ 6,560,832 6,644,915 2,931,055 896,840 2,817,020 -

{Continued)



WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

62

§ 545,181

Carrying Contractual Over 5
amount cash flows 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years years
As of December 31, 2015
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans 3 2,940,303 3,019,321 880,470 062,248 1,176,603 -
Unsecured bank loans 23,656 23,674 23,674 - - -
Accounts payable 1,309,867 1,309,867 1,309,867 - - -
Other payables 680,523 680,523 680,523 - - -
$ 4,954,349 5033385 _ 2,894,534 962,248 1,176,603 -
(iii) Currency risk
1)  Exposure to currency risk
The Group’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk were as follows:
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Foreign Foreign
currency Exchange rate NTS currency Exchange rate NT$
Financial assets
Monetary items
ush 8 83,368 3225 2,704,780 71,622 32.83 2,351,365
EUR 28 33.90 935 1 35.88 19
JPY 67,409 0.2756 18,575 133,307 0.2727 36,352
GEP 12 39.61 463 33 48.67 1,600
HKD 63 4.16 261 63 4.24 268
RMB - - - 9 5.00 47
§ 2,725,014 2,389,651
Non-monetary items
USD 40,623 32258 1,316,726 21,968 32.83 721,215
Financial liabilities
Mongtary items
uUsb 13,904 32,25 448,395 19,668 32.83 645,693
EUR 476 33.90 16,123 112 35.88 4,022
IPY 292,688 0.2756 80,663 654,578 02727 178,503
GBP - - - S 48.67 383

828,601
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Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of the foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts
receivable, net, other receivables, current financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale financial assets, loans and borrowings, notes and accounts
payable and other payables that are depominated in foreign currency. A strengthening

.(weakening) 5 % of appreciation (depreciation) of the NTD against the USD, EUR, GBP,

and the JPY ete. for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 would have increased
(decreased) the net profit after tax by $90,436 thousand and $64,919 thousand,
respectively, and other comprehensive income would have increased (decreased) by
$2,089 thousand and $0 thousand, respectively. The analysis assumes that all other
variables remain constant.

Exchange gain or loss

Since the Group has many kinds of functional currency, the information on foreign
exchange gain (loss) on monetary items is disclosed by total amount. For the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, foreign exchange gain (loss) (including realized and
unrealized portions) amounted to loss $15,952 thousand and gain $66,552 thousand,
respectively.

Interest rate risk

Please refer to the attached note for the liquidity risk and the Group’s interest rate exposure to
its financial liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the risk exposure to interest rates on the non-
derivatives financial instruments on the reporting date. For variable rate instruments, the
sensitivity analysis assumes the variable rate liabilities are outstanding for the whole year on
the reporting date.

If the interest rate increases (decreases) by 0.5%, the Group’s net profit after tax would have
(decreased) increased by $12,443 thousand and $12,226 thousand for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, all other variable factors that remain constant. This is mainly

due to the Group’s borrowing in floating rates.
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(v) Fair value
1)  Accounting classifications and fair values

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
financial assets is measured on a recurring basis. The carrying amount and fair value of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, including the information on fair value
hierarchy were as follows; however, except as described in the following paragraphs, for
financial instraments not measured at fair value whose carrying amount is reasonably
close to the fair value, and for equity investments that has no quoted prices in the active
markets and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, disclosure of fair value
information is not required :

December 31, 2016

Fair value
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Stacks listed on domestic markets 3 153,794 153,794 - - 153,794
Funds and investment 64,456 64,456 - - 64.456
Subtotal 3 218,250 218250 - - 218,250
Available-for-sale financial assets
Stocks listed on domestic and foreign markets 3 1,415,958 1,415,958 - - 1,415,958
Non-public stocks 656,245 - 656,245 - 656,245
Private fund 527,831 - 527.831 - 527,831
Subtotal b} 2,600,034 1,415,958 1,184,076 - 2.600,034
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (Note) $ 2,388,143 - - - -
Investments in debt instrument without active
market (Note) 92,600 - - - -
Accounts receivable (Note) 1,068,714 - - - -
Other receivables (Note) 173.771 - - - -
Subtotal s 3,723,228 - - - -
Amortized cost of financial liability
Bank loan (Note) $ 4,613,943 - - - -
Accounts payable (Note) 075,478 - - - -
Other payables (Note) 971411 - - - -
Subtotal $ 6,560,832 - - - -
December 31, 2015
Fair value
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Stocks listed on domestic markets 3 125,783 125,783 - - 125,783
Funds and investment 888905 888.905 - - 888,905
Subtotal $ 1,014 638 1,014,688 - - 1,014,688
Available-for-sale financial assets
Stocks listed on domestic and foreign markets $ 1,007,779 1,007,779 - - 1,007,779
Non-public stocks 549,815 - 549,815 - 549,815
Private fumd . 340,950 - 340,950 - 340,950
Subtotal 3 1,898 544 1,002,779 890,765 - 1,898,544
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December 31, 2015
Fair value
Carrying value Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (Note) $ 1,869,657 - - - -
Investments in debt instrument without
active market (Note) 159,600 - - - -
Notes and accounts receivable (Note) 700,028 - - - -
Other receivables (Note) 142,588 - - - -
Subtotal $ 2871873 - - - -
Amortized cost of financial liability
Bank loan (Note) 3 2,963,959 - - - -
Accounts payable (Note) 1,309,867 - - - -
Other payables (Note) 680,523 - - - -
Subtotal $ 4,954,349 - - - -

2)

3)

Note: The information on for value is not disclosed since the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Valuation techniques of financial instrument not valued at fair value

The valuation techniques of the Group’s financial instruments not valued at fair value by
using the methods and assumptions are as follows:

Investments in debt instrument without active market and financial liability measured at
amortized cost

If recent transaction prices or market maker quotes are available, the fair value is
based on such information. If there is no quoted market price available, the fair value
is determined by using valuation techniques and calculated as the present value of the
estimated cash flows.

Valuation techniques of financial instruments valued at fair value

a)

Non-derivative instruments

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market is based
on the quoted market prices. The quotation, which is published by the main
exchange center or that which was deemed to be a public bond by the Treasury
Bureau of Ceniral Bank, is included in the fair value of the listed securities
instruments and the debt instruments in active markets with open bid.

A financial instrument is regarded as the quoted price in an active market if the
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency; and if those prices represent
the actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.
Otherwise, the market is deemed to be inactive. Normally, a market is considered to
be inactive when:

¢ the bid-ask spread is increasing; or
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¢ the bid-ask spread varies significantly; or
e there has been a significant decline in trading volume.

When the financial instrument of the Group is traded in an active market, its fair
value is illustrated by the category and nature as follows:

+ Financial assets and liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded in
an active market, for example, investment in stock of listed companies: The fair
value is based on the market quoted price.

e Close-end funds with standard terms and conditions, such as money market
funds, and bond funds; Investors can require the investment trust company to
redeem the fund at any time. The fair value is based on the net value of the
fund.

Except for the above-mentioned financial instruments traded in an active market,
the fair value is based on the valuation techniques or the quotation from the
counterparty. The fair value refers to the current fair value of the other financial
instruments with similar conditions and characteristics, using a discounted cash
flow analysis or other valuation techniques, such as calculations of using models
(for example, applicable yield curve from Taipei Exchange, or average quoted price
on interest rate of commercial paper from Reuters), based on the information
acquired from the market at the balance sheet date.

When the financial instrument of the Group is not traded in an active market, its
fair value is illustrated by the category and nature as follows:

e Equity instruments do not have any quoted market price: the fair value is
determined based on the ratio of the quoted market price of the comparative
listed company and its book value per share. Also, the fair value is discounted
for its lack of liquidity in the market.

Derivative instruments

The fair value is determined by using the models that are acceptable to the market
participants, for example, discounted cash flow analyses or option pricing models.
Forward exchange contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates.
The fair value of structured interest derivative financial instruments is determined
by using the proper option pricing models, such as Black-Scholes model, or other
valuation technique, such as Monte Carlo simulation.

Transfer between level 2 and level 1

For the years ended Decemnber 31, 2016 and 2015, there was no change on the fair value
hierarchy of level 2 and level 1 financial asset.
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5) Movement of level 3

There were no financial assets with fair value hierarchy level 3 for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

(x) Management of financial risk

()

(ii)

(iii)

The Group is exposed to the extent of the risks arising from financial instruments as below :
1)  Creditrisk

2)  Liquidity risk

3) Marketrisk

Detailed information about exposure risk arising from the aforementioned risk was listed

below. The Group’s objective, policies and process for managing risks and methods used to
measure the risk arising from financial instruments.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk management framework.
The Group’s internal auditor is responsible to identify and analyse the risks faced by the

Group. The management of each division sets appropriate risk limits and controls, and monitor
risks that follow the adherence to limits. The Group, through their training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and.constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group’s Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk

management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group’s Audit
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the internal auditor. The internal auditor
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and the procedures,
and the result of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to financial

instruments fails to meet it contractual obligations that arises principally from the Group’s
accounts receivable, investments in securities and investments in bond.

1)  Notes and accounts receivable

According to the credit policy, the Group analyse each new customer individually for
their credit worthiness before granting the new customer standard payment terms and
delivery terms. The Group’s review includes external ratings of customers’ financial
information and bank references. Credit lines are established for each customer and
reviewed periodically.
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The Group oversees the customer’s credit risk based on the aging, due date and financial
information.

The allowance for doubtful accounts of the Group is estimated to reflect the loss in notes
and accounts receivable for those customers graded as “high risk”. The major component
of the allowance account contains individually significant exposure related to the specific
loss.

2) Investments

The credit risk exposure in the bank deposits, fixed income investments and equity
instruments are measured and monitored by the Group’s finance department. Since the

Group’s transactions resulted from the external parties with good credit standing and
investment grade above financial institutions, publicly traded stock companies and
unlisted companies with good reputation, there are no incompliance issues and therefore
no significant credit risk.

3) Guarantees

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group did not provide guarantee.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s financial department monitors cash flow requirements and optimizing its cash
return on investments. The Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at
an amount in excess of expected cash flows on financial liabilities (other than trade payables)
over the succeeding one year. The Group also monitors the level of expected cash outflows on
account and other payables. This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that
cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. As of December 31, 2016, the Group
has unused bank credit lines for short-term borrowings, long-term bank borrowings, and the
unused bank credit lines for short-term borrowings and long-term borrowings amounted to
$1,941,748 thousand, $1,352,188 thousand and $2,002,000 thousand, respectively.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest

rates and equity prices, which will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
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The Group is exposed fo currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are

denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group’s
entities, primarily the New Taiwan Dollars (NTD), US Dollars (USD) and Chinese yen (CNY).

The policy of response to currency risk :

1) The Group reserves the foreign currency position arising from sales appropriately to
remit the foreign currency expenditures and then meets the natural hedge.

2) The Group uses foreign currency borrowings and forward exchange contracts to hedge
the remaining nature of currency risk arising from the netting of foreign currency
accounts receivable and accounts payable.

3) The Group manages the currency risk and then determines the timing of exchanging the
foreign currency through collecting the foreign currency information. It also reports to
the foreign currency department to control the foreign currency trend and market
information.

(y) Capital management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain the confidence of
investors, creditors and market, and to sustain future development of the business. For the goal of
business sustainability, the Group monitors the expansion plan as well as the level of dividends to
ordinary shareholders.

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group’s return on common equity was
17.87% and 16.12%, respectively. The Group’s debt ratio at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
Debt ratio 30.64 % 28.63 %

As of December 31, 2016, there were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management.
(7) Related-party transactions:
(a) Parent Company and ultimate controlling party
The Company is the ultimate controlling party of the Group.
(b) Significant transactions with related parties
(i) Loans to related parties were as follows

Chainwin Cayman lend money to other related parties, Merit Biotech Inc. for the year ended
December 31, 2016, the amount of used loan facilities was USD856 thousand. The loan is
unsecured and its interest rate is 1.18%. Merit Biotech Inc. repaid the loan in November 2016.
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(ii) Acquisitions of property and other assets

In 2016, the Group purchased property, plant and equipment from its other related party, Merit

Biotech Inc. amounting to USD843 thousand ($26,668 thousand). As of December 31, 2016,
the purchased amount on property, plant and equipment had been received.

(c) Transactions with key management personnel

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, key management personnel compensation were
comprised as below:

2016 2015
Short-term employee benefits $ 362,278 330,428
Post-employment benefits 801 709
$ 363,079 331,137

(8) Pledged assets:
The carrying amount of pledged assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Pledged assets Pledged to secure 2016 2015
Other non-current assets Gas deposits $ 4,700 4,700
Other non-current assets Customs guarantee 20,871 20,781
Property, plant and equipment Long-term borrowings 3,176,314 3,985,080
Investment property Long-term borrowings 1,468.113 1,085,846
$ 4.669.998 5,096,407

(9) Commitments and contingencies:
(a) Contingencies: None.
(b) Commitment:

(i) In 2015, the Company signed a shareholder’s agreement with CSDC Private Limited, a
Singapore company. According to the agreement, the Company should purchase a certain
amount of raw material from the main shareholders of CSDC Private Limited between 2014 to
2017. Moreover, the Company acquired 250 shares of CSDC Private Limited without
consideration.
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(i) The unrecognized commitment of purchase of raw materials by the aforementioned
shareholder’s agreement and acquisition of plant expansion and machinery equipment were as

follows:
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
The unrecognized amount $ 2.916,764 2,100,360
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
(iii)  The unused letters of credit g 234,314 105,610

(10} Losses Due to Major Disasters: None.
(11) Subsequent Events: None.
(12) Other:

The followings were the summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses
by function for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Classified | Classified Classified | Classified
B o RS sy B

Erployee benefits

Salaries 1,308,032 674,549 1,982,581 1,152,890 548,601 1,701,491

Labor and health insurance 101,727 36,634 138,361 83,012 33,095 116,107

Pension 49,469 15,168 64,637 37,750 13,137 50,887

Others 44,967 88,407 133,374 38,011 74,628 112,639
[Depreciation 2,196,934 141,182 2,333,116 1,767,223 132,087 1,899,310
|Amortization 11,594 22,349 33,943 7,686 16,095 23,781
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The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Group:

(i) Loans to other parties:

(1)
(iii)

(In thousands of Dollars})
Highest
balance Collateral
of financing
10 cther Amount of | Range of [Purposes of| Transaction
partics used loan {inlerest rates|  fund amount for | Reasens Individual | Maxizuum
during the | Ending fucilities | duringthe |financing fos]  business for fonding loan | timit of fund
MNumber | Nameof | Nameof | Accounl [Relatedparty peried balance { duringthe | period  |thet between two | shoriterm | Allowance limgls financing
{Nate 1Y tender borrower name (Note 2y MNoie 2) period (Nete3) pasties financing | for bad detd Item Value Mo}y | (Noted)
0 [Chaiwin  [Mesit Other Yes 48375 - - Lissw 2 «  [Wodking - None «  eleqity et equity
lagricuiture [Biotech Inc. Keceivabl fust,sony [Capitel “ﬁ;m z?:;zss
fand Anioal 3 X
[Technology
(Cayman
fislands) 1td.

Note 1: Company numbering as follow:
Subsidiaries to subsidiaries—10

Note 2: The credit amount to lending,

Note 3; Purposes of lending were as follows:

1.Business refationship

2.Short-term financing

Note 4: The loan limit provided by Chainwin Agriculture and Animal Technology (Cayman Tslands) Lid. to a particular single party and to other parties should not exceed
10% and 20%, respectively, of its equity based on the most recent audited or reviewed financial statement by a ceriified accountant.

Guarantees and endorsements for other parties: None.

Securities held as of December 31, 2016 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures);

{In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Category and Ending balance Highest
Name of halder name of Relationship Account Shares/Units . i Percentage of Fairvalue | Percentage of
security with company title {in thousands) | CATYIng value | ;onerohio (9%) ownership (v)]  Remerk
IThe Company IGreen Seal None ICurrent financial 500 72,750 0.34 72,750 0.34
Holding assets at fair value
[Limited/Stock Ehrough profit or
0$5
LWIN Venture [Green Seal " " 557 81,044 038 81,044 0.38
Capital Corp. Holding
Limited/Stock
a Allianz Global # u 2,128 26,408 - 26,408 -
Investors Taiwan
PMoney Market
[Fund
» Capital Money 2 " 191 3,048 - 3,048 -
Market Fund
IChainwin ICTBC Hwa-win ] ] 3,207 35,000 - 35,000 -
|Agriculture IMoney Market
fand Animal [Fund
[Technology
Cayman Istands)
[Ltd.
218250 218.250
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Category and Ending balance Highest
Name of holder name of Relationship Account Shares/Units . Percentage of . Percentage of
security with company title (in thousands) | S2mying value | o0 erehin (94) Fair value ownership (%) Remark
[The Company ITEQ ] ICurrent available- 25,968 864,724 8.57 864,724 8.57
ICORPORATION/ [for-sale financial
Stack lassets
” IMAG. LAYERS # ” 2,125 109,002 250 109,002 2.50
[Scientific-Technics]
ICo., Ltd./Stock
[The Company [Solar Applied None }Current ayailahle- 11% 1,041 003 1,041 0.03
Materials for-sale financial
[Technology fassets
ICorp./Stack
974.767 974.767
4 Inventec Solar “ lr~Jon-(:un'ent 34,000 287,123 1051 287,123 10.51
{Energy lavailable-for-sale
ICorporation /Stock [financiaf assets
# [Tainetgy Tech Co., L4 7 943 13,628 0.26 13,628 .30
[Lid./Stock
# ICDIB Capital » " 5,000 91,297 333 91,297 333
Creative Industrics
Limited /Stock
” [Fuh Hwa Tung-1a 7 " 20,710 335,299 - 335,209
Fund
” MagiCap Venture ” » 1,000 93,630 1.78 93,630 1.78
ICapital Co., Ltd.
/Preferred Stock A
# New Future ” L 10,000 100,000 15.87 100,000 15.87
Capital Ca.,
Led./Stock
# Magi Capital Fund Ll ” - 50,332 381 30,332 5.81
I, L.P.
I3 Grand Fortune ” ] 3,000 50,651 6.87 50,651 6.37
[Ventare Corp.
yStack
” Fub Hwa Oriental " n 13,000 142,200 - 142,200
Fund
IWin Broadcom Ltd,  [Subsidiary’s o 75 427,563 0.02 427,563 0.03} (Notel)
[Semiconductors  [/Stock Imain client
ICayman Tslands
Ca., Ltd.
» lanckiwave Inc./  [Subsidiary’s L] 1,264 1,264 14.37 1,266 14.37
eries B Preferred elient
tock
[WIN Venture [Nisho Tmage [The n 3,300 10,743 133 10,743 7.33
ICapital Corp. [Technology Inc.  [Company’s
/Stock felient
" MOAT Electronics None 4 300 1,121 127 1,121 1.27
Corporation /Stock
# nerit Biotech INC.[Main n 1,320 20,414 293 20,414 293
/Stock hareholder of
he Company’s
mvestment
hrough
subsidiaries
1.625.267 1,625,267
[The Company MagiCap Venture None [Non-current 92607 ____ 92.600 16.50 (Note 2) 17.20
Capital Co., Ltd./ mvestments in debt] e
Preferred Stock B instrument without
active market
Chainwin Formosa Fortune L] Financial assets 12 24,332 478 (Note 3) 4.78
Agriculture and  [Group (Cayman d at cost —
IAnimal [siand) Co., Ltd.
Technology
Cayman [slands}
Lid.
Note 1; Avago Technologies Lid. ¢ d Broadcom Ltd. b it merged with Broadcom Corporation in 2016,

Note 2; The redeemable preferred stock was the nature of bond, which was recognised as non-current investment in debt instrument without active market.

Note 3: Because the fair value of the investment cannot be measured reliably, the Group recognized it as financial assets measured at cost.
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{iv) Tndividual securities acquired or disposed of with accumnlated amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of

the capital stock:
(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
ICategory and
‘Namc of | Relationship Beginning Balanee Purchases Sales Engdiag Balance
Wame of | pame of Account feounter-party]  with tie Shares (in Shares (i Shares (in Gain (loss) on| Shares (in
company seCunty pame cothpany h ds) | Amount | thousands) | Ameunt | thonsands) Price Cost disposal__ fhousands)  Amaunt
[The ICapital ICurrent - - 4,320 76,800 22,526 159,400 27346 436,256 436,200 56 - -
Company  [Money [financiat
Market Fund [assets at fair
[value
through
prafit or joss
L] IPolans De- [ B - 7.538 §9,500 55,797 663,244 63,335 752,866 752,744 122 - -
x L - - 19,868 245,738 119,752] 1482818 139,620| 1,723,958 | 1,728,556 402 - -
] INon-surrent - - 30,000 300,060 - - 9,290 327,000 92,897 191,243 20,10 335,299
lavailzble- (Note 1) MNote 2)
[for-sale.
[fimancial
lassets
a r - |Subsidiary 7.000 227,636 15,000 490,500 - - - - 22,000 1,266,394
nccounted (Note 3)
for using
., fequity
pnethod
[Win ] - {investoient 3000 195,540 7500 486,720 - - - - 10,500 686,123
joonduct|Agriculture firough (Note 3)
jors Cayman fand Animal kubsidiary
listands Ca., [Technology
Lid. Cayman
Eslands) Ltd /]
tock

Note 1: When calculating the amount of the gains on disposal, any handing fee or surcharges were deducted.

WNote 2: The amount of ending balance includes the amount of the unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale-financial assets.

Wote 3: The amount of ending balance was calculated using equity method. The amounts of the transaction and the ending balance had been offset in the consolidated
financial statements.

(v} Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.

(vi) Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.

(vii) Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of the
capital stock:

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Name of

[Me Company

Wi

emiconductors
yman Islands
. Ltd

company Related pariy

[Win
|Semicanductors
ICayman Islands
Co., Ltd.

[The Company

[Transactions with terms differentNotes/A ccounts reccivable (payable)
Tra details from others
Percentage of total
Percentage of fotes/aceounts
Nature of total receivable
relationship | Purchase/Sale Amount | purchasesisales | Payment terms | Unit price | Payment terms | Ending balance (payable) Remark
tSubsidiany [ales (4,497,103 (34) % 1~2 Moath - - 521,957 49% MNote)
[Parent Company{Purchase 4,497,103 100 % 1--2 Month . - (521,957 {100)% (Note)

Note; The amounts of the transaction and the ending balance had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.
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(viii) Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of the capital stock:

{In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

‘Name of Nature of Ending Tumover QOverdue Armounts received in]  Allowance
company Counter-party relationship balance rate Amount Action taken subsequent period | for bad debts ) Remark
[The Company [Win Semiconductors rubsidiazy 521,957 10,02 - - 521,957 - (Note)
Cayman Islands Co.,
Lad.

Note: The amounts of the transaction and the ending balance had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

(ix) Trading in derivative instruments: None.

(x) Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions:

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

No. Nature of Intercompany transactions
(Note 1) |Name of company | Name of counter-party relationship Account hame Amount Trading terms Percentage of the consolidated
(Note 2) net revenue or total assets
0 [The Company IWin Semiconductors 1 IOperating revenue 4,497,103 Note 3 33.01%
ICayman Islands Co., Ltd.
0 [The Company IWin Semiconductors 1 Accounts 521,957 L 1.98%
ICayman Islands Co., Ltd. receivable—related
partics
1 [Win [The Company 2 lAccounts 521,957 " 1.98%
ISemiconductors payable — related
ICayman Islands lparties
Co., Ltd.
1 in [The Company 2 [Operating cost 4,497,103 L4 33.01%
emiconductors
yman Islands
o, Ltd,
1 in IWIN SEMT. USA, INC. 3 (Operating expense 73,557 " 0.54%
Semiconductors
ICayman Tslands
Co., Lad.
2 'WIN SEMI. USA, (Win Semiconductors 3 IOperating revenue 73,557 " 0.54%
INC. ICayman Tslands Co., Ltd.

Note 1: Company numbering as follows:

Parent company—0

Subsidiary starts from 1

Note 2: The numbering of the relationship between transaction parties as follows:

Parent company to subsidiary—1

Subsidiary to parent company—2

Subsidiary to subsidiary—3

Note 3: There is no significant difference from transaction terms with non-related parties.

(Continued)




WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

(b) Information on investments:
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The following is the information on investees for the years ended December 31, 2016 (excluding information on investees in

Mainland China):
(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Main Original investment amounl Balance as of December 31, 2016 Highesi Netincome Share of
Name of investor  [Name ofinvesied] businestes and Shares Percentage of Carrying Percentage of (losses) profitsTasses of
Location products December 31, 2016) December 31, 2005]_(in thousands) ownership value ownership of investes investee Remark
[The Company IWINSEMI  [CaliforniaUSA  Markcting 8203 4203 1,000 100.00 44 7,354 100,00 %4 {02) Qoz) (o)
[USA, ING.
. [%in JCryman Istands  [Sefling of Gads 718,136 27636 22,600 100,00 %] 1266394 100.00 %] 20,933 20933 | @ols)
pemiconductors hwafers
[Cayman Islands
ICa., L1d.
. [Inventec Energy [Solar component 630,029 TB45S 32,828 34.52 % 158,017 34,52 54 (20,545 4,351
[Carpozation module
pnznifacrining
H [WIN Venture  [Faiwan [Emvestment 250,000 200,000 25,000 100.00 % 160,463 100.00 5| 6,144 6,144 | (Nole)
{Capilal Corp. lactivities
" Phalanx Biotech [Taiwan IMicroatray 180,400 180,400 16,400 31.06 %4 83,381 31.06 54 {111,608 @3.167)
KGroup Corp. lproducts
Imanufaciuring
r ICSDC Privale  [Singapore [Development and - - - 25.00 % - 25.00 % {48,867, B
Limited manufacturing of
fcompound
pemiconductors
lechnologies
[WIN Vennire Capital [Phatamx Biotech [Taiwan Microaray 39,600 19,600 3,600 632 % 18,303 6.82 93 {111,608, (7,281
[Corp. IGroup Corp. products
fnanufacturing
[Win Semicorductors [Rainbow Star  [Hritish Virgin 32,590 12,590 20 4000 ¥4 31,335 40,00 54 (1,606 {675
1Cayman Islands Co., [Group Limited [Isfands Jactivities
[Lid.
- [Chainwin [Cayman Kslands 3 682,260 195540 10,500 4335% 686,123 50.00 %) 106,308 2512
A gricutture and
JAnimal
Technology
KCayman Jslands)
L1d,
ohaimwin Agri mosa § ilish Virgin . 38573 - 1283 10000% 36300 100.00 9 (2,136) (2.136Y (Note)
and Animal Group Co., Lid. |lslands
[Technology (Cayman
islands) L1d.
WNote : The amount had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.
(c) Information on investment in Mainland China:
(i) The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information:
{In thousands of Dollars)
Main Totnl [Asronmaled owlfloe o Invectienl flgers Avmrmbied omflow of [ Net income Accomu-latod
busintsrt amouir Method Imcstmend from imesment from {osxes) Highest Percevinge Trvesiroent Carrying value il gs |
‘Nama of and of poid-in capiial . Teivanas of ‘Taiwam as of ofthe investee Pﬂmup_d’ of ~ income (loszes) asof December n cornend peviod
Ererace products imesiment Tarmasy 1, 2016 uflons Inflret December 31, 2016 Qote2) ovmership omerstip 11,2016
13
; 19Ea57]  (Nae £3 . . . [EI T R FERIT O 724,056, B
“"""_ ”“_’“""'"‘“‘ KRMB 42541 ) fusD 4,118 USD 4,118} WUSD 3809)
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WIN Semiconductors Corp. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(i} Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

{In thousands of Dollars)
Accumulated Investment in Mainland China as Investment Amounts Authorized by Upper Limit on Investment
of December 31, 2016 Investment Commission, MOEA (Note 5)
267,030 677,250 10,990,730
(USD 8,280 ) (USD 21,000 )

Note 1: The Group invested in Mainland China panies through Chainwin Agriculture and Animal Technology (Cayman Isiands) Ltd., which is established in a third
1egion,

Note 2: The amount of net income. (Josses) was recognized based on the audited financial statements of the investee companies.

Note 3: Camrying value as of December 31, 2016 was with reference to the amount recognized by the investment through subsidiaries to subsidiaries established in a third
region. .

Note 4: Investment income (Yoss) recognized was transtated into New Taiwan Dollar at the average exchange rate for year ended December 31, 2016. The other amounts
related to foreign cumrency were translated into New Taiwan Dellar at the exchange rate ot the balance sheet date,

Note 5: Amount of upper limit on investment was the higher between sixty pescentage of total equity or total consolidated equity.

(iii) Significant transactions: None.

(14) Segment information:

(a)

®

The Group's reportable segment is the foundry segment. The foundry segment engages mainly in researching, developing,
manufacturing, and selling of GaAs wafers efc.
Other operating segments are mainly engaged in investment activities and agriculture technology, which do not exceed the
quantitative thresholds to be reported.
Operating segment profit or loss {includes reportable segment revenue and expenses), segment assets, segment liabilities, and their
measurement and reconciliations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the reportable amount is similar to that in the
report used by the operating decision maker and the operafing segment accounting policies are similar to the ones described in
note 4 "significant accounting policies" were as follows:
Reconciliation
For the year ended December 31, 2016 Foundry Other and elimination Total
Revenue :
Revenue from external customers $_13.417.822 205,254 - 13,623,076
Interest expense L 20,220 - - 20,220
Depreciation and amortization $_2.363.376 7.436 1247 2,372,039
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using equity method $___(42,554) (7,281) - (49.835)
Reportable segment profit or loss $_ 3,529,126 47,760 (82.284) _ 3.494.602
Assets:
Capital expenditures in noncurrent assets $_3.220,851 51,294 - 3.272,145

{Continued)
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Reconciliation
For the year ended December 31, 2015 Foundry Other and elimination Total
Revenue -

Revenue from external customers $ 12,014,917 1,030 - 12,015,747
Interest expense $ 13,852 - - 13.852
Depreciation and amortization §_ 1,923,091 - - 1,923.091
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures

accounted for using equity method §  (106,195) (3.784) - (109.979)
Reportable segment profit or loss $_ 3,576,183 (65,819} - 3.510,364
Assets:

Capital expenditures in noncurrent assets $ 3,525,524 - - 3,525,524

The segment profit or loss, assets and Habilities of the operating segment above were consistent with the related accounts shown
in the consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of comprehensive income of the Group.

Segment information by products and services

The information from the product and the service segment coincides with the adminisirative segment, and its revenue from

external customers was disclosed in Note 14(b),

Geographic information

In presenting information on the basis of geograpliy, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers, and

segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from external customers for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Area
External Customers:

America
Asia
Africa
Taiwan
Europe
Total

Area
Non-current Assets:

Taiwan

Asia

America
Total

2016 2015
$ 850,744 595,420
10,352,382 7,691,152
- 2,309,242
2,018,653 980.434
401,297 439,499
$ 13,623,076 12,015,747
2016 2015
$ 16,041,501 14,906,924
134,988 -
393 320
5 16,176,882 14.907,244

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, investment property, intangible assets and prepayments for business
facilities; not including financial instruments, goodwill and deferred tax assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Major customers

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, sales to customers greater than 10% of net revenue were as follows:

2016 2015

Net revenue Percentage of Net revenue

Percentage of

amonnt net revenue (%) amount net revenue (%)

Operating revenue of the Group-A company 3,821,509 28 4,434,213 37
Operating revenue of the Group-B company - - 2,309,242 19
Operating revenue of the Group-C company 2.035.699 15 212.071 2
§ 5,857,208 43 6,955,526 58
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